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A massage from cur CEO to owr shereroders

Fiscal yesr 2004 was en excling for Chico's
and we are extremely proud of our perfermrance.
Cur brand s stronger then ever and we have
remendous Mmomentum. Our customer-centric
oFlicsophy and unigus Mmerchandss fusied much
success ang heloed us exceed ihe
€1 nlllon merk N yearly sales for the %ret time.
We slso delverad our elgnth consscutive year of
Iight corrparaiie stora ncreeses.
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Our financlel resuts end fnanciel positton have

naver lbeen stronger. N 2004, net ihncome ross

41% from $100 milon to elrmost $141 millon or $.78
ver ciuted shame con 8 split-adiusted basgls (the per
share informration takes Nto consderation the
two-for-one stock gplit we sffectuated or
February 22. 2005). Net seles aisc Nncreassd for
the fiscal yeer by 39% 1@ record $1.087 biffon.
Comperslle stors s for company-owneo
stores noregssd 92 @%f@?ﬁ%@ fiscal year, and both
gross and operating margine improved once
agein. Qur balence shest is solid end we have no
cin’ot other dhwm our & : operating leblties.

8 Increased our  cash end marketale
@@@uﬁ@@@ [@’ﬂ?ﬁ@ from $120 miion to $266
miliien. and our net book value nereased by $186
milion to erd the yeer In excess of $580 milion
W elso acopiad a stodk regourdrass program and
acquired 5 millon of stock this program.
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Fecal 2004 saw many other significant
accomplishments for Chice’'s. We opened
00 net new stores, expandec or relccates 31
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reguirements b y ihe SEC and the New York Stock
- B

[t
>V<
é
(
j
%
@
8
2
)
C
@
0,

@@ﬁmwﬂ@m 0 corporat®

Chico's s peassd to report that
i sz:”a@@@ﬁﬂ@ﬁ{, MENageMEn: Deleves
ﬁ;’@ﬁ over Tnarcal

CVEMBNCE.

o)
©

2

u

O)'

Lﬁ@@@@“

Board of Directors and our exe

middle management teams. 'n fiscal 2004
we expandod ouwr Board te nine mMembers
with the additon of Stewart P “Tom” Mﬁ@ﬂ““
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CFO of Foarguson Enterprises, re. Mz Mier
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Chico’s has come a long way since opening our very first store on
Sanibel Island, Florida, more than 20 years ago. What started as one
small shop selling cotton sweaters and folk art has evolved into the
fastest growing women’s specialty apparel retailer in the country with
over 490 locations nationwide.

Today, Chico’s carries everything from comfortable, everyday clothing
10 elegant eveningwear. Chico’'s private-label designs range from
basic black pants and cotton tees, to specialty jackets in one-of-a-
kind prints and patterns. Customers love Chico’s for their wrinkle-
proof Travelers™ Collection and their extensive selection of coordinat-
iNg accessories.

Chico’s is also known for their exceptional personal service. As any of
the thousands of loyal Chico’s customers can tell you, Chico’s is a truly
unique shopping experience.




WHITE LACK

H O U S E M

Classic movies, a string of pearls, vintage wine, a beautiful woman...

some things never go out of style. That's the theory behind our clothing.

We see things in black and white (OK, and a few shades in between),

White House | Black Market is known for feminine, sophisticated apparel

and accessories in timeless shades of white and black. Our mission,

“Make Women Feel Beautiful,” extends to every aspect of our company’s

operation: from the design of the clothing, to the elegant layout of

the stores, to our commitment to superior customer service.

Our unigue philosophy is reflected in over 165 stores nationwide

where our customers find an assortment of stylish, yet affordable,

private-label clothing and accessories inspired by the latest runway trends.

From wearable basics to sexy, elegant looks for a special night out to

‘casual separates perfect for any vacation, it’s all here in black and white.
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Hae QUIN CLUSTOMe .I
beautiful. In our elegant:
new soma by CHICO'S |
stores, we've created
an intimate boutié]ue
environment where the
Chico’s customer ¢an
find all the things she
loves about Chxoo
supreme comfort,
high quality, unigue
design...tranglated into
a collection of intimate
apparel, loungewear
and sleepwéar j
designed just for her.

The soma collection is

made from only the
softest microfibers and
highest-grade cotton,
pre-washed for comfort '
and a perfect fit. Many
of our pieces, such as
the soma TravelersT'V' '
Collection, are desvgned
to be mixed and matched L
within the soma product
line, as well as with Chico’s | !
apparel. Most of all, every ¢
piece at soma is a pure )
pleasure to put on.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Chico’s FAS, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a specialty retailer of private label,.
sophisticated, casual-to-dressy ‘clothing, intimates, complementary accessories, and other non-clothing gift
items under the Chico’s, White House|Black Market (“WH|BM?”), and Soma by Chico’s brand names.

Chico’s. The Chico’s brand, which began operations in 1983, sells exclusively designed, private
label clothing focusing on women who are 35 years old and up with moderate and higher income levels.
The styling is relaxed, figure-flattering, and mostly designed for easy care. The Chico’s brand is vertically
integrated and the Company designs virtually all of its products either in-house or working with its
independent vendors.

WH|BM. The WH|BM brand, which began operations in 1985 and was acquired by the Company
in September 2003, focuses on women who are 25 years old and up who lead active work and social lives
with moderate and higher income levels. Its offerings include high-quality fashion and merchandise in the
classic and timeless colors:of white and black and related shades. The WH|BM brand is developed by
working closely with a number of vendors and agents to select, modify, create and combine products
designed and manufactured by them or their sources.

Soma by Chico’s. In August 2004, the Company began testing 10 stores for its new intimate
apparel concept, “Soma by Chico’s”, initially aimed at customers with the same age and income level as
customers of the Chico’s brand. This concept offers products in intimate apparel, sleepwear, bodywear,
and active wear that may ultimately appeal to a broader customer base than Chico’s. The Soma by
Chico’s brand is developed by working closely with a number of independent vendors and agents to select
products designed and manufactured by them or their sources and to design proprietary products either in
house or working with these independent vendors.

The Company continues to explore other specialty retail concepts, including brand extensions, which
would be complimentary to its current brands and may be future growth vehicles. If a concept appears to offer
profitable growth within a reasonable time horizon, the Company may move the concept into a test phase.

The Company historically has endeavored to maintain a merchandise mix that emphasizes the continued
introduction of new styles and designs to complement its seasonal and core product offerings. The Company
intends to continue this approach with respect to its Chico’s brand and intends to expand the utilization of this
approach with respect to the WH|BM brand and the Soma by Chico’s brand.

As of March 21, 2005, the: Company operated 672 retail stores, including those under the Chico’s,
WH |BM and Soma by Chico’s names in 47 states, the District of Columbia, the U.S. Virgin Islands and
Puerto Rico. The Company’s 456 Chico’s front-line Company-owned stores, 165 WH|BM front-line stores
and 10 Soma by Chico’s stores, as of this date, compete in the “better-priced” market, with 29% of these
stores predominantly in upscale malls, 16% in upscale street locations and the balance in upscale open air
specialty and strip centers. Chico’s also has 12 franchised locations remaining in 3 states, although no new
franchisees have been authorized since 1989. There are also 25 Chico’s outlet locations and 4 WH | BM outlet
locations that provide clearance activities for the Chico’s, Soma by Chico’s, and WH|BM front-line stores.

In May 2000, the Company established a call center for catalog and online sales for its Chico’s brand.
Chico’s mails a catalog almost every month and historically has relied on these catalogs as a staple to drive its
customers into its Chico’s brand stores. Since May 2000, these catalogs have also served to promote and
encourage call-in and online sales. Sales through the call center’s toll free telephone numbers and from
www.chicos.com amounted to $26.8 million in fiscal 2004 and are viewed as additional sales that provide a
customer service for those who prefer shopping in this manner.

Although the opportunity for online purchases of Soma by Chico’s merchandise is provided on the
Chico’s website, the program is not currently supported by any stand-alone print catalog. As the Company
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continues to evaluate the overall Soma by Chico’s concept, the Company will also evaluate at what point it
would make sense to launch a catalog for Soma by Chico’s and thus more extensively promote online sales for
Soma by Chico’s. Any such launch is not expected until at least fiscal 2006.

The Company launched a catalog for the WH|BM brand for the first time during the 2003 Christmas
holiday season and, since then, has been utilizing catalogs for its WH|BM brand generally on a monthly basis.
These catalogs are designed to drive customers into WH | BM stores, and the Company has not yet established
the ability for customers to order WH|BM merchandise online or through its call center. The Company
intends to expand its call center operations to handle catalog and online sales of WH|BM merchandise in late
fiscal 2005.

The Company has been experiencing annual double digit same store sales increases since fiscal 1997.
Through late 2000, the Company had been able to use markdowns (first, second and special sales) in its front-
line stores to effectively clear merchandise without opening new outlets. During this time, the Company
operated between 7 and 8 outlets. In late 2000, Chico’s decided to develop a plan to discontinue using some of
its smaller front-line stores as clearance vehicles and to reallocate more of the square footage to full-priced
merchandise. To this end, Chico’s established a separate outlet division, with separate management. The
newer outlet stores generally have a larger average store square footage than the front-line stores for each
brand. In order to provide the Chico’s outlets with a full complement of merchandise, Chico’s also developed a
supplemental product line for distribution only through its outlet stores. This product line is now known as
“Additions by Chico’s”. This supplemental label includes select product items that are designed to help
promote the clearance of existing merchandise within Chico’s. The Company has not established such a
supplemental product for WH|BM or Soma by Chico’s.

Also during the past few fiscal years, the Company has been testing the expansion of its Chico’s brand
within its stores by offering certain items which complement the clothing products such as footwear, leather
goods, watches, and other gift products that are primarily designed by the Company. All of these items are
intended to promote the Chico’s brand in areas beyond clothing. Because of the additional space required to
accommodate these additional categories and in an effort to improve the visual ambiance of its clothing and
accessory presentations, the Company has been actively pursuing larger spaces for its existing and new Chico’s
stores. Rather than targeting a 1,200-1,500 net selling square foot store as the Company had pursued through
fiscal 1998, the Company now believes the target Chico’s brand store size is in the 1,800-3,000 net selling
square feet range. Although the Company may from time to time open larger or smaller Chico’s stores, the
Company’s primary focus in both its new and existing markets is currently a Chico’s store with 1,800-3,000 net
selling square feet.

The average size of a WH|BM store has been about 30-40% smaller than the current targeted size for a
Chico’s store. In the future, the primary focus for WH|BM stores, in both new and existing markets, is
expected to be a store with 1,500-2,500 net selling square feet.

The Company regularly reviews the appropriate size for its stores and may adjust the target store size in
the future as necessary.

The Company intends to continue locating a large portion of its front-line Company-owned stores,
including Chico’s, WH|BM and Soma by Chico’s, primarily in established upscale, outdoor destination
shopping areas and high-end enclosed malls located either in tourist areas or in, or near, mid-to-larger sized
markets. In recent years, Chico’s has been opening locations in smaller sized markets with encouraging results
and the Company intends to expand its opening of stores in smaller sized markets as long as results are
meeting expectations. In the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005 (fiscal 2004), the Company opened 99 net
new Company-owned stores and one of its franchisees opened one store. The Company plans to open a
minimum of between 110 and 120 net new Company-owned stores in the fiscal year ending January 28, 2006
(fiscal 2005). Of this total, approximately 65-70 are expected to be Chico’s stores, approximately 40-45 are
expected to be WH|BM stores, and up to 6 are expected to be Soma by Chico’s stores. The Company also
expects to close up to 4 existing Chico’s stores and from 2 to 4 WH|BM stores during fiscal 2005.
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The White House, Inc. Acquisition

On September 5, 2003, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of The White House,
Inc. (“The White House”). As of September 5, 2003, The White House operated 107 stores in 30 states, the
U.S. Virgin Islands, Puerto Rico and the District of Columbia. As a result of the acquisition, the Company
believes it is poised to further strengthen its position in the specialty retail market and more effectively
continue with its overall growth strategy. ‘

Over the three-year period ended on February 1, 2003, The White House increased its store base from
60 to 92 stores and achieved a compound annual growth rate in net sales of 32.9%. The White House’s
comparable store sales gains aVeraéed 11.5% per fiscal year during this period, increasing 13.1% in the fiscal
year ended February 2, 2002 and 16.3% in the fiscal year ended February 1, 2003. The Company believes that
its expertise in brand management, sourcing and other logistics provides the Company with the ability to
continue to successfully expand product offerings and distribution under the WH|BM brand. The Company
believes there are excellent opportunities for achieving operating synergies, some of which are already being
realized. The Company has fully integrated all of The White House’s overhead functions with the Company’s
current operations. : :

Business Strategies . '

Overall Growth Strategy. Over the last several years, the Company has continued to build its store base
primarily through the opening of new stores but also through the acquisition of the WH|BM concept. During
the same time, the Company has been building its infrastructure to accommodate the anticipated future
growth in its store base and the associated increases in revenues and expenses. This increase in infrastructure
includes significant additions to its senior and middle management teams, a rollout of state-of-the art cash
registers (fiscal 2001), a new distribution center (fiscal 2002) and new back office software which “went live”
in the latter half of fiscal 2003. The Company has established annual square footage growth of at least 20% as
its overall goal (which aggregates the square footage of Chico’s, WH | BM and Soma by Chico’s stores) for at
least the next two years. In assessing the growth potential of each of the Company’s two primary divisions in
the United States and the potential Canadian market, the Company believes the overall market for Chico’s
stores to be between 600 and 800 stores, and that the overall market for WH | BM stores is very comparable to
the potential number of Chico’s stores. The Company believes it is premature to assess any growth potential
for the Soma by Chico’s brand.

Distinctive Private Label Clothing and Coordinated Accessories. The most important element of the
Company’s business strategies ‘is the distinctive private label clothing and complementary accessories it sells.

Chico’s. Emphasizing a relaxed fit as well as comfort, Chico’s clothing is made mostly from natural
fabrics (including cotton; linen and silk) blends and sophisticated synthetics and synthetic blends.
Accessories; such as handbags, belts, shoes, and jewelry, including earrings, watches, necklaces and
bracelets, are specifically designed to coordinate with the colors and patterns of the Chico’s brand
clothing, enabling customers to easily enhance and individualize their wardrobe selections.

Chico’s designs virtually all of its clothing and accessories either in-house or working with its
independent vendors, and Chico’s controls most aspects of the design process, including choices of
pattern, construction, specifications, fabric, finishes and color.

Chico’s -clothing is designed through the coordinated efforts of the merchandising and product
development teams. Style, pattern, color and fabric for individual items of clothing are developed based
upon historical sales data, anticipated future sales and perceived current and future fashion trends that
will appeal to its target customer.

The Chico’s product development and merchandising teams develop the in-house designs and design
modifications. By, conceptualizing and designing in-house, contracting, for the most part, directly with
manufacturers, and providing on-site quality control, Chico’s has been able to realize average initial gross
profit margins for its clothing and accessories that are higher than the industry average, while at the same
time providing value to its customers.



The distinctive nature of Chico’s clothing is carried through to its sizing. Chico’s uses international
type sizing, comprising sizes 0 (size 4-6), 1 (size 8-10), 2 (size 10-12), and 3 (size 14-16). As in the
past, Chico’s occasionally will offer one-size-fits-all and small, medium and large sizing for some items.
The relaxed nature of the clothing allows the stores to utilize this unusual sizing and thus offer a wide
selection of clothing without having to invest in a large number of different sizes within a single style.
Chico’s has also added half sizes (sizes 0.5, 1.5, 2.5 and 3.5) to some of its pant styles, most notably
jeans.

WH|BM. WH|BM clothing is made from a variety of natural and synthetic fabrics, including
cotton, rayon, silk, polyester, tencel, microfibers and matte jersey, all in white and black and related
shades. As is the case with Chico’s, the accessories at WH|BM, such as handbags, belts and jewelry,
including earrings, necklaces and bracelets, are specifically purchased and developed to coordinate with
the colors and patterns of the clothing, enabling customers to easily enhance and individualize their
wardrobe selections.

The clothing and accessories offered at WH|BM stores use designs created in-house, designs
developed in conjunction with its vendors, and designs generally available in the market. For the most
part, WH|BM purchases from intermediaries rather than directly from the manufacturers. The
merchandise is selected, enhanced and created so as to carry out WH|BM'’s commitment to “make
women feel beautiful” and to project a contemporary and feminine self-image. As is the case with
Chico’s, the style, pattern, color and fabric for individual items of WH|BM clothing are selected based
upon historical sales data, anticipated future sales and perceived current and future fashion trends that
will appeal to its target customer.

The Company intends to offer the assistance of the Chico’s sourcing and technical product teams to
the WH|BM teams in the product development and sourcing processes, and, at the appropriate time,
may transition the in-house design and sourcing process for its product offering to deal more directly with
its manufacturers. To that end, WH|BM is currently testing a small quantity of goods developed directly
with a manufacturer.

Sizing in WH | BM stores is currently American sizes in the 0-14 range, which the Company believes
is more appropriate for the target WH|BM customer. As a result, the fit of the WH|BM clothing tends
to be more styled to enhance the figure of a body-conscious woman, yet remain comfortable.

Personalized Service and Customer Assistance. The Company has always considered personalized
customer service one of the most important factors in determining its success. The Company intends, through
its specialized training efforts, to make certain that sales associates in all of its stores offer assistance and
advice on various aspects of their customers’ fashion and wardrobe needs, including clothing and accessory
style and color selection, coordination of complete outfits, and suggestions on different ways in which to wear
the clothing and accessories. The Company encourages, but does not require, sales associates to wear the
Company’s clothing and accessories in its stores (subject to varying state laws) and, to complement this, it
offers substantial employee discounts. The Company’s sales associates are encouraged to know their regular
customers’ preferences and to assist those customers in selecting merchandise best suited to their tastes and
wardrobe needs. To better serve its customers, sales associates are also encouraged to become familiar with
new styles and designs of clothing and accessories by trying on new merchandise. Neither Chico’s nor
WH |BM have found it necessary to offer alteration services.

Chico’s. As part of its strategy to reinforce the casual and comfortable aspects of Chico’s clothing,
Chico’s sales associates are trained to demonstrate to customers the most attractive ways to wear Chico’s
clothing. Dressing rooms in a Chico’s store are generally not equipped with mirrors, encouraging
customers to come out of the dressing rooms so that store associates can provide such assistance.

WH|BM. While customer service has always been very important to WH|BM sales associates, the
Company is in the process of adapting the Chico’s training programs for WH|BM sales associates in
order to provide an even more focused customer service emphasis. WH|BM dressing rooms are equipped
with mirrors (and are expected to continue to be so equipped) and store associates are being trained to
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further enhance their abilities to assist and advise on various aspects of their customers’ fashion and
wardrobe needs.

The Company takes pride in empowering its associates to make decisions that best serve the customer.
This healthy sense of empowerment enables the Company’s associates to exceed customers’ expectations. In
addition, many of the store managers and sales associates were themselves customers prior to joining the
Company and can therefore more easily identify with customers. The Company’s associates are expected to
keep individual stores open until the last customer in the store has been served. If an item is not available at a
particular store, sales associates are encouraged to arrange for the item to be shipped directly to the customer
from another Chico’s, Soma by Chico’s or WH|BM store. The Company provides a Company sponsored
“SKU hotline” and in-store “SKU lookup” to assist sales associates with this task.

Customer Loyalty. Building . customer loyalty through focused preferred customer programs and
effective implementation of the Company’s merchandising and customer service strategies is considered
another key element for the Company’s success. The Company’s sophisticated database hardware and
software allow the Company to more sharply focus its marketing, design and merchandising efforts to better
address and define the desires of its target customer.

Chico’s. Chico’s preferred customer club, which was established in the early 1990’s, is known as
the “Passport Club” (“Passport™), and is designed to encourage repeat sales and customer loyalty for its
Chico’s brand. Features of the club include discounts, special promotions, invitations to private sales, and
personalized phone calls regarding new Chico’s merchandise.

A Chico’s customer signs up to join Passport at no cost, initially as a “preliminary” member. Once
the customer spends $500 over any time frame, the customer becomes a “permanent” member entitled to
a 5% lifetime discount, advance sale notices, free shipping and other benefits. Chico’s has been very
successful in increasing its database of preliminary and permanent Passport members. As of January 29,
2005, Chico’s had approximately 1.3 million permanent Passport members and over 4.1 million
preliminary Passport members. During fiscal 2004, the permanent Passport members accounted for
approximately 76% of overall sales, while the preliminary members accounted for approximately 17% of
overall sales. Also during fiscal 2004, Chico’s signed up an average of 70,000 preliminary new members
per month, of which an average of approximately 30,000 per month spent the required $500 to become a
permanent member, The Company has extended Passport benefits to purchases made at its Soma by

. Chico’s stores.

The Company believes that permanent Passport members shop more frequently and spend more on
the average transaction than preliminary Passport members. During fiscal 2004, the average permanent
Chico’s passport member spent $112 per transaction and shopped five to six times per year, while the
preliminary Passport members averaged $70 per transaction and shopped one to three times per vear.

WH|BM. During fiscal 2004, the Company launched a customer loyalty program for WH |BM
called “The Black Book”. Similar to Passport, The Black Book is designed to encourage repeat sales and
. customer loyalty. Features of the club are similar to the Passport Club and include discounts, special
promotions, invitations to private sales, and personalized phone calls regarding new WH|BM merchan-
dise. A WH|BM customer signs up to join The Black Bock at no cost, initially as a “preliminary”
member. Once the customer spends $300 over any time frame, the customer becomes a “permanent”
member entitled to a 5% lifetime discount, birthday bonuses, double discount specials, advance sale
notices, free shipping and other benefits. Since it was introduced and as of January 29, 2005, The Black
. Book already had over 60,000 permanent members and over 616,000 preliminary members. Since being
launched, the permanent Black Book members have accounted for 25% of overall sales, while preliminary
members have accounted for 48% of overall sales.

High-Energy, Loval Associates. The Company believes that the dedication, high energy level and
experience of its management team, support staff, and store associates are key to its continued growth and
success and helps to encourage personalized attention to the needs of its customers.
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In selecting its associates at all levels of responsibility, the Company looks for quality individuals with
high energy levels who project a positive outlook. The Company has found that such associates perform most
effectively for the Company in the stores and at headquarters and contribute to a fun and exciting shopping
experience for its customers.

Sales associates are compensated with a base hourly wage but also have opportunities to earn substantial
incentive compensation based on their individual sales. For the most part, these incentives are based upon the
dollar amount of sales to individual customers, thereby encouraging sales of multiple items and focusing the
sales associate on each transaction. Store managers receive base salaries, except in California where they
receive a base hourly wage. All store managers are also eligible to earn various incentive bonuses tied to
individual sales and storewide sales performance. Each store brand has separate district and regional
managers. The district and regional managers receive base salaries and also have the opportunity to earn
monthly incentive compensation based upon the sales performance of stores in their districts and regions, as
well as incentives, including, in some years, stock options, based on their district or region performance
compared to the overall sales performance of the respective store brand.

The Company offers its associates other recognition programs and the opportunity to participate in its
stock incentive, stock purchase and 401 (k) programs. Management believes that these programs and policies
offer the Company’s associates opportunities to earn total compensation at levels that are generally at, or
above, the average in the retail industry for comparable positions.

The Company’s emphasis, where possible, on a “promote from within” philosophy, combined with
increases in the number of new Company-owned stores, provides opportunities for qualified associates to
advance to higher positions in the Company.

Additional Company-Owned Stores. Management believes that the ability to open additional Company-
owned stores will be a factor in the future success of the Company. During fiscal 2003, for example, the
Company opened 51 new Company-owned Chico’s front-line stores, 10 Pazo stores, 7 WH|BM stores
(subsequent to September 5, 2003) and 6 new Company-owned outlet stores, while closing 2 Chico’s front-
line stores. Also, during fiscal 2003, the Company converted 1 Pazo store into a Chico’s front-line store.
During fiscal 2003, the Company decided to discontinue the Pazo test concept and began the process of
converting § of the remaining Pazo stores to the Company’s other concepts and permanently closing the
remaining Pazo store. The closing/conversion process related to the Pazo stores was completed in early fiscal
2004. During fiscal 2004, the Company also opened 99 net new Company-owned stores and | new franchise
store was opened for a total of 100 net new stores composed of 51 net Chico’s front-line stores, 2 Chico’s outlet
stores, 44 net WH|BM front-line stores, 2 WH|BM outlet stores and 10 Soma by Chico’s stores minus
9 closed/converted Pazo stores. As of March 21, 2005, the Company has opened 6, net front-line Chico’s
stores and 9 WH|{BM stores of the minimum 110-120 net new Company-owned stores planned for the fiscal
year. The Company has signed leases for several additional new Chico’s and WH|BM store locations, and the
Company also is currently engaged in negotiations for the leasing of numerous additional sites. Of the
110-120 net new Company-owned stores to be opened in fiscal 2005, the Company expects to open
approximately 25-27 stores in the first quarter, 31-35 stores in the second quarter, 34-36 stores in the third
quarter, and the balance in the fourth quarter.

In deciding whether to open a new store, the Company undertakes an extensive analysis that includes the
following: identifying an appropriate geographic market; satisfying certain local demographic requirements;
evaluating the location of the shopping area or mall and the site within the shopping area or mall; assessing
proposed lease terms; and evaluating the sales volume necessary to achieve certain profitability criteria, Once
the Company takes occupancy, it usually takes from three to five weeks to open a store. After opening, Chico’s
and WH|BM front-line stores have typically generated positive cash flow within the first year of operation
(after allocation of a portion of home office administrative expense based on sales) and have typically had an
eleven to eighteen month payback of all initial capital and inventory costs. However, there can be no assurance
that new Chico’s or WH |BM stores will achieve operating results similar to those achieved in the past.

The Company plans to grow by opening additional Company-owned stores and does not currently intend
to increase the number of franchisees. The Company intends to continue to support its franchise network and
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anticipates that its existing franchisee in Minnesota may be able to further meet the Chico’s criteria for
opening additional stores in its limited territory. This franchisee opened one new franchised store in fiscal
2004.

Store Locations

The Company’s Chico’s, WH|BM and Soma by Chico’s stores are situated, for the most part, in mid-to-
larger sized markets. In recent years, the Company has been testing several locations in smaller sized markets
with encouraging ‘results. The Company intends to expand its opening of stores in smaller sized markets as
long as results are meeting expectations. The Company’s front-line stores are located almost exclusively in
upscale outdoor destination shopping areas, high-end enclosed shopping malls and, to a lesser degree, regional
malls which offer high traffic of the respective target customers of the brand. For all of its brands, the
Company seeks to Jocate the Company-owned front-line stores where there are other upscale specialty stores
and, as to its mall locations, where there are two or more mid-to-high end department stores as anchor tenants
and, where possible, have opened the Soma by Chico’s stores adjacent to or nearby an existing Chico’s store.
The Chico’s and WH |BM outlet stores are, for the most part, located in outlet centers, although the Company
is evaluating the possibility of opening several new outlets in value centers.

On January 29, 2005, the Company-owned Chico’s front-line stores average approximately 2,032 net
selling square feet, while the Company-owned Chico’s outlet stores average approximately 2,960 net selling
square feet. WH |BM front-line stores average approximately 1,353 net selling square feet and WH |BM outlet
stores average approximately 1,198 net selling square feet. Soma by Chico’s stores average approximately
2,290 net selling square feet. The Company seeks to open Chico’s front-line stores with approximately 1,800-
3,000 net selling square feet and to open WH | BM front-line stores with approximately 1,500-2,500 net selling
square feet. However, in locations where the Company has a desire to establish a store for either brand but
where the optimum store size or location is unavailable, the Company will lease a front-line store with as few
as 1,200 net selling square feet or as many as 4,500 net selling square feet. If the volume of business at one of
these smaller stores is sufficient, and there is no ability to expand the existing store, the Company has chosen
in the past to open additional stores nearby, operating more than one store in the same general shopping area.

~ Non-selling space within Company-owned stores generally amounts to 25-28% of the gross leased space, and
is not considered in the net selling square foot calculations.



The Company’s current stores, as of March 21, 2003, are located in the following jurisdictions:

Comg)r:;?()swned Chico’s Chico’s WH|BM WH|BM Soma by
Front-Line Company-Owned Franchised Front-Line  Outlet Chico’s
Stores Qutlet Stores Stores Stores Stores Stores  Total Stores

California............. 55 4 21 1 81
Florida ............... 48 4 1 20 1 2 76
Texas ................ 35 2 13 3 53
Mlinois ............... 19 2 7 28
Georgia .............. 16 1 8 1 26
Virginia .............. 17 2 5 24
New Jersey ........... 18 4 22
New York ............ 17 2 2 21
Arizona .............. 11 1 7 1 20
Maryland ............. 13 57 1 1 20
North Carolina ........ 15 1 4 20
Pennsylvania .......... 17 1 2 20
Massachusetts . ........ 16 1 2 19
Ohio................. 13 ] 5 18
Michigan ............. 13 1 3 17
Connecticut . .......... 12 4 16
South Carolina ........ 9 5 14
Colorado ............. 3 1 4 13
Minnesota ............ 10 2 12
Missouri .. ............ 9 3 12
Tennessee ............ 8 3 ! 12
Louisiana............. 8 3 11
Oregon ............... 7 3 10
Alabama ............. 3 1 2 1 9
Nevada............... 4 1 3 1 9
Washington ........... 7 2 9
Indiana............... 7 1 8
Kentucky ............. 6 1 7
Oklahoma ............ 5 2 7
Kansas ............... 4 2 6
Wisconsin ............ 5 1 6
New Mexico .......... 3 2 5
Utah................. 4 1 5
Delaware . ............ 1 1 2 4
District of Columbia. . .. 2 2 4
Nebraska ............. 3 1 4
Rhode Island.......... 3 ! 4
Hawail ............... 3 3
Towa ................. 2 i 3
Arkansas ............. 2 2
Mississippi .. ... ..... . 2 2
U.S. Virgin Islands . . ... 2 2
Idaho ............. ... i
Maine................ 1
Montana.............. 1
Puerto Rico ........... 1 1
South Dakota ......... 1 i
Vermont.............. 1 1
West Virginia ......... 1 1
Wyoming ............. 1 . . e _ . 1

Total. .............. 456 25 12 165 4 10 672
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In a typical new front-line Company store (including Chico’s, WH|BM and Soma by Chico’s stores),
the Company’s out-of-pocket cost of leasehold improvements, fixtures, store equipment and beginning
inventory ranges from $300 000 to $650,000 (after taking into account landlord construction allowances and
other concessions).

For each store concept, the Company utilizes teams of associates experienced in new store openings who
are able to supervise final build-out and set up store interiors rapidly, including, where necessary, the flooring,
furniture, fixturing, equipment and initial inventory displays. The use of in-house crews allows the Company to
open a new store generally within three to five weeks after taking occupancy. As a result, management believes
that the Company opens its new stores more rapidly and at somewhat less cost than many of its competitors.
The Company has an arrangement whereby the final design and initial build-out of the store is handled by
third-party architectural and contracting firms, with offices or affiliates throughout the country. Under this
arrangement, the Company’s in-house crews are still responsible for approving the final stages of the build-out
and for setting up the store interiors.

The following table sets forth information concerning changes in the number of Company-owned and
franchise stores during the past five fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Ended

February 3, February 2, February 1, January 31, January 29,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)

Company-Owned Stores

Stores at beginning of year* ........... 191 239 300 366 545
Opened** ... ... ... ... ... ..., 51 64 66 74 109
Acquired from franchisees . .......... — — — — 1
Acquired pursuant to The White

House transaction ................ — — — 107 —
Closed ........... e HE) e - e)) (10)

Stores atend of year ................. 239 300 366 545 645

Franchise Stores

Stores at beginning of year ............ 9 11 11 12 12
Opened..........ccviviiii 2 — 1 — 1
Acquired by Company .............. - = = — (1)

Stores at end of year ................. 1 1 12 12 12

Total Stores ........................ 250 311 378 357 657

Stores by Brand

Chico’s front-line ............... U 233 289 349 399 450

Chico’s outlet ... 6 11 17 23 25

Chico’s franchise . ... ................. 11 11 12 12 12

WH|BM front-line................... — — — 112 156

WHI{BMoutlet ...................... — — — 2 4

Soma by Chico’s..................... — — — — 10

Pazo ... . o — — 9 o

Total stores at end of year ............ 250 311 318 557 657

* Not retroactively restated to include the WH|BM stores prior to September 5, 2003.

** Not retroactively restated to include the growth in the number of WH|BM stores prior to September 5,
2003. Also, does not include stores that opened as relocations, expansions or conversions of previously
existing stores within the same general market area (approximately five miles).
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Outlet Stores

As of March 21, 2005, the Company operated 25 Chico’s outlet stores and 4 WH|BM outlet stores. The
Company’s outlet stores carry slower-selling items removed from the front-line stores, remaining pieces of
better-selling items replaced by new shipments of merchandise to front-line stores, returns of merchandise
accepted from Chico’s franchise stores under the Company’s franchisee return policy, some seconds of certain
merchandise, and its “Additions by Chico’s” label. Although the “Additions by Chico’s” label has grown to
represent approximately 14% of the outlet sales during fiscal 2004, the Company does not currently anticipate
that the “Additions by Chico’s” label will account for more than 25% of outlet sales in the future. The
Company’s outlet stores act as a vehicle for clearing certain marked down merchandise while continuing to
allow front-line stores to maintain a somewhat limited markdown policy. Prices at the Company’s outlet stores
generally range from 30% to 70% below regular retail prices at front-line stores. Although service is also
important at the Company’s outlet stores, there is somewhat less emphasis in the outlet stores on personalized
customer service. Sales from the Company’s outlet stores represented approximately 3.9% of the Company’s
net sales. The Company’s outlet stores have not been intended to be profit centers, and the Company is
constantly re-evaluating its approach to outlet stores to improve the return on clearance of such goods.

The Company’s outlet stores are generally larger than front-line stores, averaging approximately 2,720 net
selling square feet at January 29, 2005. In fiscal 2004, the Company opened 2 new Chico’s outlet stores and
2 new WH | BM outlet stores. The Company opened 6 new Chico’s outlet stores in fiscal 2003, 6 new Chico’s
outlet stores in fiscal 2002 and 5 new Chico’s outlet stores in fiscal 2001. Currently, the Company is planning
to open 2-3 new Chico’s outlet stores and 6-7 new WH |BM outlet stores in fiscal 2005.

Franchise Stores

Currently, there are twelve franchised Chico’s stores operated by three owners, none of whom is
otherwise affiliated with the Company. Each franchisee paid an initial franchise fee of between $5,000 and
$75,000 per store and is not required to pay any continuing monthly royalty. Each franchisee has been
provided an exclusive license at a specified location to operate a Chico’s store and to utilize certain of the
Company’s trademarks, service marks and certain other rights of the Company relating to the sale of Chico’s
merchandise. The term of the franchise is generally ten years, renewable for additional ten-year periods if
certain conditions pertaining to the renewal are met (including the payment of a renewal fee). Franchisees are
required to operate their Chico’s stores in compliance with the Company’s operating requirements and the
franchise agreement. The franchisee has full discretion to determine the prices to be charged to customers
generally by changing or replacing the pre-ticketed price tags. Franchisees are required to purchase all Chico’s
merchandise from Chico’s or from Company approved suppliers. Currently, the merchandise offered by
Chico’s franchisees at their stores is purchased from the Company at prices equal to 50% of suggested retail
prices, subject to rebates of between 2% and 8% based on actual quarterly return rates versus preset goals. In
certain situations, franchise stores may carry other brands of clothing or accessories if the Company approves
such merchandise. In such cases, franchisees may be required to pay the Company a monthly royalty equal to
5% of gross sales of any approved merchandise not purchased from the Company. During fiscal 2004, the
Company’s net sales to franchisees totaled approximately $8.5 million, or 0.8% of total net sales.

As of March 21, 2005, the franchisee holding franchise rights in Minnesota has the right to open
additional Chico’s stores. With respect to the franchise rights granted in Minnesota, the Company granted an
exclusive right to develop Chico’s stores and subfranchise within the state of Minnesota. The Minnesota
franchisee may technically have the ability to open an unlimited number of additional Chico’s stores within its
limited territory. However, the Company believes that economic, logistic and other practical considerations
effectively limit the number of additional Chico’s stores that this franchisee may open in the future. The
Company does not believe that the rights of the Minnesota franchisee will significantly limit the Company’s
ability to expand.

The Company intends to continue supporting its existing Chico’s franchise network. However, the
Company does not intend at this time to pursue any new Chico’s franchises, to establish any WH|BM or
Soma by Chico’s franchises, or to enter into any additional franchise territory development agreements. In the
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past, the Company has acquired certain franchise stores that have been offered for sale to the Company.
During fiscal 2004, the Company acquired its franchise store in Indiana and is prepared to consider additional
purchases of franchise stores that;may be offered to the Company from time to time in the future. In addition,
the Company may terminate franchises where performarice or circumstances so justify. Management expects
that Chico’s franchise stores will continue to play an increasingly less important role in the Company’s future
sales and profitability.

Store Operations

The Company-owned Chico’s stores typically employ a manager, two assistant managers, and numerous
sales associates who are either full-time or part-time associates. The WH|BM stores historically have
employed a manager and a slightly smaller support staff of associates, in part because of the smaller average
size of stores. In an effort to further enhance customer service and drive sales in appropriate locations, staffing
was increased somewhat at WHlBM stores during fiscal 2004. In addition, at newer WH |BM stores, which
are generally larger in size, the Company will typically employ a staff comparable in size to that at Company-
owned Chico’s stores. During the peak selling seasons, both Company-owned Chico’s stores and WH |BM
stores generally hire additional sales associates.

Many store support functions, such as purchasing and accounting, are handled by the Company’s
corporate headquarters. Store managers at Company-owned Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s stores, however, are
responsible for managing the store’s day-to-day business and driving sales in the stores. In order to effectively
accomplish these tasks, store managers are encouraged to be present on the sales floor whenever possible

_during business hours. This allocation of responsibility allows store managers more time to focus on the actual
management of the store, including the recruitment, training, and retention of store associates, and compliance
with store operating policies and procedures. Store managers also manage store sales through the effective
day-to-day management of the sales force, focusing on customer service, and implementing in-store and local
community promotional and outreach programs. A similar allocation of responsibility is being implemented
and adapted to the operations of the WH |BM stores.

The Company has established formalized training programs that are intended to reinforce and enhance
the personalized customer service offered by all associates as well as increase their merchandise knowledge.
The comprehensive training programs include a Most Amazing Personal Services (M.A.P.S.) module and a
Most Amazing Register System (M.A.R.S.) module, among others, which the Company believes will help
assure that sales associates better understand the product and improve the level of service provided to its
customers.

The Company currently supervises its store operations through its Chief Stores Officer, its Senior Vice
President-Chico’s Stores, its Vice President-Store Operations, its directors of WH|BM and Soma by Chico’s
stores, several brand specific Regional Sales Managers, and numerous brand specific District Sales Managers.
The Senior Vice Premdcnt Chico’s Stores and the Director of WH|{BM National Sales, have direct
supervision respon51b111ty of their respective Regional Sales Managers. The Regional Sales Managers have
direct supervision responsibility of their respective District Sales Managers. Each District Sales Manager
supervises multiple store locations within their respective brand and has primary responsibility for assisting
individual store managers in. meeting established sales goals, and carrying out merchandise presentation,
staffing, training and expense-control programs established by headquarters.

Management Information Systems

| ‘ ‘
The Company’s current principal management information systems are run on numerous Win-
dows NT/2000 based Applications Servers and two IBM AS/400 platforms located at the home office in
Ft. Myers, Florida and the Winder, Georgia distribution center, which provide a full range of retail, catalog,
Internet, financial and merchandising information systems, including purchasing, inventory distribution and
control, sales reporting, accounting, warehousing and merchandise management principally using CRS Retail
Systems, Lawson, Manhattan Associates, STS by NSB, Momentis and Mozart by Commercialware.
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All Company-owned stores utilize essentially the same point of sale cash register computers, which are
polled nightly to collect SKU-level sales data, Passport and The Black Book information and inventory receipt
and transfer information for each item of merchandise, including information by style, color and size.
Management evaluates this information, together with its weekly reports on merchandise shipments to the
stores, to analyze profitability, formulate and implement company-wide merchandise pricing decisions, assist
management in the scheduling and compensation of associates (including the determination of incentives
earned) and, most importantly, to implement merchandising decisions regarding needs for additional
merchandise, allocation of merchandise, future design and manufacturing needs and movement of merchan-
dise from front-line stores to outlet stores.

The Company operates a cash register system using a Windows NT platform in a wide area network and
using the CRS Retail Systems software used by many other retailers. The Company is now focused on a
register rollout which includes new cash register hardware and upgraded software and will focus on further
improving customer service, reporting, training and overall functionality, including allowing the Company to
better integrate all three channels of distribution.

The WH|BM operations utilize essentially the same software systems to provide the various functions
related to point-of-sale, inventory management, planning and distribution as utilized by the Chico’s brand.
During fiscal 2004, the financial books and records for WH |BM operations were migrated to the Company’s
existing financial systems, the other software systems previously utilized for the other operations of WH |BM
were integrated with the Company’s newly implemented software systems and the Company moved the
WH |BM merchandising, distribution and allocation software from its existing platform to a platform using
systems substantially similar to those used at Chico’s. In addition, during the second and third quarters of
fiscal 2004, the Company replaced the legacy WH|BM cash registers with a register very similar to the
Chico’s cash register.

The Company is committed to an ongoing review and improvement of its information systems to enable
the Company to obtain useful information on a timely basis and to maintain effective financial and operational
controls. This review includes testing of new products and systems to assure that the Company is able to take
advantage of technological developments.

Merchandise Distribution

Currently, all distribution is handled through the Company’s distribution center in Winder, Georgia. New
merchandise is generally received daily at the distribution center. Merchandise from United States vendors is
trucked to Georgia or arrives by air, as the circumstances require. Most of the merchandise from foreign
vendors arrives in this country via air (and occasionally by sea) at various points of entry in New York,
California, Georgia, or Florida and is transported via truck to the distribution center. After arrival at the
distribution center, merchandise is sorted and packaged for shipment to individual stores. Merchandise is
generally pre-ticketed with price and all other tags at the time of manufacture.

The Company’s current distribution center is highly automated, utilizing sophisticated “pick to light”
material handling equipment. Using this system, the turnaround time between distribution center receipt of
merchandise and arrival at stores generally averages approximately 24 to 48 hours for its nearest stores and two
days to a week for its other stores. In an attempt to ensure a steady flow of new merchandise, the Company
ships merchandise continuously to its stores. The Company uses common carriers, such as United Parcel
Service and Federal Express, for most shipments to its stores.

The capacity of the Company’s new distribution center in Georgia should be sufficient, in the opinion of
management, to service the Company’s needs for at least two to three years of future growth (including
without limitation the growth of Chico’s, WH|BM, and Soma by Chico’s), without requiring building
expansion under its existing county commitment. The property in Georgia is large enough to permit building
expansion and has been pre-approved for such building expansion. Thus, in order to address the Company’s
longer term anticipated growth, the Company will examine in fiscal 2005 the need for a building expansion at
Winder, Georgia and could begin construction of such an expansion as early as fiscal 2006.
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Merchandise Design and Product Development

Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s private label merchandise is developed through the coordinated efforts of
the Chico’s merchandising teams working with its independent vendors. WH | BM private label merchandise is
developed through a coordination of efforts between the WH | BM merchandising and creative teams and the
private label design teams of its outside vendors. The Company will continue to evaluate when to further
expand the product development team at WH |BM. Style, pattern, color and fabric for individual items of the
Company’s private label clothing are developed based upon historical sales data, anticipated future sales and
perceived current and future fashion trends that will appeal to its target customer.

Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s product development, merchandising, planning and allocation, and
production and sourcing departments report to Patricia Murphy Kerstein, Executive Vice President-Chief
Merchandising Officer. Chico’s product development, merchandising, and planning and allocation depart-
ments report to the Senior Vice President-General Merchandise Manager, who reports to Patricia Murphy
Kerstein. Ms. Murphy Kerstein also has the Vice President-Production and Sourcing and the Vice President-
Merchandise Controller reporting to her. Soma by Chico’s is headed up by the director of Soma by Chico’s
product development who reports directly to Ms. Murphy Kerstein.

WH |BM’s creative, product development and merchandising teams are headed up by Patricia
Darrow-Smith, Executive Vice President-Chief Merchandising Officer of WH|BM, who oversees the
Vice President-Cperations and several division directors (including a director of product development, a
director of technical design and a director-general merchandise manager) of WH|BM who, in turn,
collectively oversee their respective areas.

The creative and product development teams for both Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s develop the in-house
designs and design modifications with input from both merchandising teams as well as its independent
vendors. The merchandising team for WH|BM coordinates with the creative and product development staffs
at its various vendors in the evaluation of designs, design modifications, and creation of new product. In
addition to selecting distinctive patterns and colors, the Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s product development
teams and the Company’s merchandising teams are particularly attentive to the design and specification of
clothing style, construction, trim and fabric treatment. The Company believes this attention to design detail
assists in distinguishing its clothing and strengthening the customer’s perception of quality and value.

Although the Company develops merchandise for specific seasons, the product development efforts, both
internally for the Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s brands and on a coordinated basis with vendor product
development personnel for WH|BM, are a constant process which result in the continual introduction of new
merchandise in the Company’s front-line stores. This continual process supports the Company’s merchandis-
ing and inventory strategy, and serves to reduce, somewhat, the Company’s exposure to fashion risk associated
with any group of styles or trends.

Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s have historically purchased most of their clothing and accessories from
companies that manufacture such merchandise in foreign countries except for the “cut and sew” operations
described below. WH|BM has historically purchased a significant amount of its clothing and accessories from
companies that arrange for such items to be manufactured in foreign countries. The Company does business
with all of its foreign vendors and importers in United States currency, and purchases may be supported
through letters of credit.

Manufacturers of Chico’s clothing utilize the designs and specifications provided by the Company most
often through its CAD systems. Except for certain U.S. based “cut and sew” operations, the Company
generally does not purchase and supply the raw materials for its clothing, leaving the responsibility for
purchasing raw materials with the manufacturers. The Company also buys fabric and provides such fabric to
domestic “cut and sew” manufacturers in the United States who make the specified Chico’s brand designs and
styles. The Company anticipates it is likely to continue this practice in the future.

Currently, Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s contract primarily with between 75 to 100 apparel vendors and
45 to 60 accessory vendors, as well as several fabric suppliers and several “cut and sew” vendors for its Chico’s
brand merchandise. Because of certain lower sourcing costs associated with the Company’s vendors in various
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parts of the world and certain other long term uncertainties presented by such vendor relationships, the
Company may continue to redirect a portion of its sourcing activities towards new vendors in China, India and
other areas.

The Company also currently contracts with more than 200 different vendors for its WH|BM merchan-
dise, but relies on five to seven core vendors who collectively account for over one third of the total WH{BM
merchandise purchases. For the most part, however, the WH|BM team is not utilizing vendors that are
currently supplying the Chico’s brand.

Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s. During fiscal 2004, China sources accounted for approximately 50%
of the Company’s purchases at retail for their Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s merchandise, United States
sources (including fabric and “cut and sew” vendors) accounted for approximately 26% of their
merchandise, India sources accounted for approximately 13% of overall purchases, and Turkey sources
accounted for approximately 5% of overall purchases. Peru, Macau, Canada, Thailand, and other smaller
sources, in the aggregate, amounted to approximately 6% of overall purchases. In fiscal 2003, the
Company expects sourcing from China for Chico’s and Soma by Chico’s merchandise is likely to increase
slightly as a percentage of overall purchases, while vendors in India can be expected to continue to
provide approximately 12% to 14% of total purchases. Purchases from vendors in Turkey are also likely to
remain in the 4% to 6% range of total purchases, while United States vendors are expected to decrease
slightly as a percentage of overall purchases.

WH|BM. During fiscal 2004, United States sources accounted for approximately 47% of the
Company’s purchases at retail for their WH|BM merchandise, China sources accounted for approxi-
mately 47% of their merchandise and the Dominican Republic, Canada, India and other smalier sources
accounted for approximately 6% of overall purchases. It is expected that sourcing through foreign vendors
could gradually increase now that WH|BM can utilize sourcing alternatives provided by the Company.

Although there were no manufacturers that produced more than 10% of the Company’s merchandise
during the last fiscal year, the Company has contracted with one intermediary vendor that accounted for 22%
of the purchases for the Chico’s brand (including all fabric and labor) during the last fiscal year through
separate subcontracts with several “cut and sew” factories in the United States and China. With respect to
purchases made through this intermediary, the Company, for the most part, purchases the necessary
specialized cloth and then coordinates with this intermediary who arranges for various independent United
States and Chinese “cut and sew” manufacturers to make the specified designs and styles, Although the
Company believes that its relationship with this particular intermediary is good, there can be no assurance that
this relationship can be maintained in the future or that the intermediary will continue to be available to
coordinate and facilitate production and supply of merchandise. If there should be any significant disruption in
the supply of merchandise through this intermediary in particular, management believes that it can
successfully implement its contingency plans so as to allow it to continue to secure the required volume of
product. Nevertheless, there is some potential that any such disruption in supply could have a short-term
material adverse impact, and possibly even a longer-term material adverse impact, on the Company’s
operations.

As with most apparel importers, the Company has infrequently experienced certain difficulties with the
quality and timeliness of delivery of merchandise. Although the Company has been sensitive to quality control
and has taken certain steps to better control the quality of merchandise, there can be no assurance that the
Company will not experience problems in the future with matters such as quality or timeliness of delivery.

The Company has no long-term or exclusive contracts with any manufacturer or supplier and competes
for production facilities with other companies offering clothing and accessories utilizing similar manufacturing
processes. Although the Company believes that its relationships with its existing vendors are good, there can
be no assurance that these relationships can be maintained in the future. If there should be any significant
disruption in the delivery of merchandise from one or more of its current key vendors, management believes
there would likely be a material adverse impact on the Company’s operations. Also, the Company is in the
process of developing relationships with several new vendors in various countries. Although the Company has
investigated the past performance of these vendors and has inspected factories and sampled merchandise,
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there can be no assurance that the Company will not experience delays or other problems with these new
sources of supply. New relationships often present a number of uncertainties, including payment terms, cost of
manufacturing, adequacy of manufacturing capacity, quality control, timeliness of delivery and possible
limitations imposed by trade restrictions.

Emborts and Import Restrictions

Although Chico’s continues to ‘utilize United States manufacturers to manufacture a portion of its
clothing and although much of the clothing offered by WH|BM is being sourced from United States
- manufacturers, the Company has been traditionally shifting more and more of its manufacturing of clothing
over the past several years to manufacturers located outside the United States and the Company expects this
trend may continue for both Chico’s and WH |BM. As a result, the Company’s business has remained and will
continue to remain subject to the various risks of doing business abroad and to the imposition of United States
customs duties. In the ordinary course of its business, the Company may from time to time be subject to
claims by the United States Department of Homeland Security through its Customs and Border Protection
division for tariffs, duties and other charges.

Imports from China, India, Turkey, Peru, Macau, Canada and Thailand currently all receive the
preferential tariff treatment that is accorded goods from countries qualifying for normal trade relations status
(“NTR”), formerly known as most favored nation status. If the NTR status of any of these countries were to
be lost and the merchandise purchased by the Company were then to enter the United States without the
benefit of NTR treatment or subject to retaliatory tariffs, it would be subject to significantly higher duty rates.
Increased duties, whether as a result of a change in NTR status or any overall change in foreign trade policy,
could have a material adverse effect on the cost and supply of merchandise from these countries. The NTR
status for China had in the past been subject to an annual review, and this annual review had generated
considerable debate. In October 2000, then-President Clinton signed legislation designed to eliminate the need
for this annual review and establish permanent NTR status between the United States and China, effective if
and- when China was admitted into the World Trade Organization (“WTQ”). In December 2001, China
became a member of the WTO and permanent NTR status became effective. Although the Company expects
NTR status to continue for the countries where its principal vendors are located, the Company cannot predict
whether the U.S. government will act to remove NTR status for any of the countries or take other actions that
could impact the tariff treatment-on foreign made goods coming from any of the countries where its principal
vendors are located. In this regard, legislative initiatives have recently been advanced in the United States
Congress to repeal China’s permanent NTR status, although it is uncertain as to whether such legislation
would be able to garner sufficient support to be enacted. For these and other reasons expressed below, the
ability to continue to conduct business with vendors located in China is subject to political uncertainties, the
financial impact of which the Company is unable to estimate. To the extent China may have its exports or
transaction of business with U.S. persons restricted by political action, the cost of Chinese imports could
increase significantly and/or the ability to import goods from China may be materially impaired. In such an
event, there could be an adverse effect on the Company until alternative arrangements for the manufacture of
its products could be obtained on appropriate and favorable terms.

The import of the Company’s clothing and some of its accessories also had been subject to constraints
imposed by bilateral textile agreements between the United States and a number of foreign jurisdictions.
These agreements had imposed quotas that limited the amount of certain categories of clothing that could be
imported from these countries into the United States.

In 1994, the member-countries of the International Trade Organization completed the Uruguay Round of
trade negotiations of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade and the Agreement was approved by the
United States Congress. This pact, as it applies to textiles, which is now known as the WTO Agreement on
Textiles and Clothing (the “ATC”), was implemented on January 1, 1995 and, as a result, many of the
existing restrictions on the Company’s ability to import Chico’s and WH | BM merchandise, including quotas,
were eliminated as of January 1, 2005. A quasi-judicial unit of the WTO, the Textiles Monitoring Body
(TMB), supervises the implementation of the ATC. The Company cannot accurately assess at this time how
the ATC will affect its financial results and operations or whether there might be other arrangements added in
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the future which impose other types of restrictions on imports of apparel and related accessories. For example,
because of increased Chinese imports resulting in large part from the elimination of the historical quotas, the
United States found it necessary last year to restrict Chinese imports on certain apparel items temporarily
through the utilization of special safeguard provisions under China’s accession protocol. Although the apparel
items subject to restriction were not items the Company purchases to any significant extent, similar safeguards
on other apparel items may be requested by textile makers and could be imposed now that the historical
quotas for such items have been fully eliminated. In the event of any significant protectionist trade actions, the
Company will evaluate alternative sourcing options and will work to mitigate any significant business risks.
The Company believes that its principal competitors are subject to similar risks regarding these potential trade
measures.

The Omnibus Trade and Competitiveness Act of 1988 added a new provision to the Trade Act of 1974
dealing with intellectual property rights. This provision, which is commonly referred to as “Special 301” and
which remains effective even following the approval of the ATC, directed the United States Trade
Representative (the “USTR”) to designate those countries that deny adequate and effective intellectual
property rights or fair and equitable market access to United States firms that rely on intellectual property.
From the countries designated, the USTR is to identify as “priority” countries those where the lack of
intellectual property rights protection is most egregious and has the greatest adverse impact on United States
products. The USTR is to identify and investigate as priority foreign countries only those that have not entered
into good faith negotiations or made significant progress in protecting intellectual property. Where such an
investigation does not lead to a satisfactory resolution of such practices, through consultations or otherwise,
the USTR is authorized to take retaliatory action, including the imposition of retaliatory tariffs and import
restraints on goods from the priority foreign country,

Under Special 301, the USTR has also created a two-tier “watch list” that requires the country so listed
to make progress on intellectual property protection reform or risk designation as a priority foreign country.
Countries named on the first tier of the watch list, i.e., the priority watch list, are requested to make progress in
certain areas by specific dates. Countries named to the second tier, i.e., the secondary watch list, are asked to
improve their intellectual property protection efforts.

As of March 21, 2005, of the countries where the Company’s existing or planned key vendors have
manufacturing operations or suppliers, none was a priority foreign country. India and Turkey were on the
priority watch list and Peru, Canada, and Thailand were on the secondary watch list.

In early 2005, a special out of cycle review under Special 301 was initiated with respect to China because
of concerns regarding weaknesses in China’s protection of intellectual property rights, which review could form
the basis for an eventual World Trade Organization dispute settlement case and/or designation of China as a
priority foreign country under Special 301. In addition, China continues to be monitored under a related
provision of the Trade Act of 1974, section 306. Under either of these provisions, the United States Trade
Representative will be in a position to impose sanctions if China fails to adequately enforce existing bilateral
agreements concerning intellectual property rights.

Of countries where the Company’s existing or planned key vendors have manufacturing operations,
Turkey, India, Peru and Thailand have enjoyed Designated Beneficiary Developing Country (“DBDC”)
status under the Generalized System of Preferences (“GSP”), a special status that is granted by the United
States to developing nations. DBDC status allows certain products imported from those countries to enter the
United States under a reduced rate of duty. In order to maintain that status, the countries are required to meet
several criteria. The GSP was renewed in 2002 through December 31, 2006.

The Company cannot predict whether any of the foreign countries in which its clothing and accessories
are currently manufactured or any of the countries in which the Company’s clothing and accessories may be
manufactured in the future will be subject to these or other import restrictions by the United States
Government, including the likelihood, type or effect of any trade retaliation. Trade restrictions, including
increased tariffs or more restrictive quotas, or both, applicable to apparel items could affect the importation of
apparel generally and, in that event, could increase the cost or reduce the supply of apparel available to the
Company and adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The
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Company’s merchandise flow may also be adversely affected by political instability in any of the countries in
which its goods are. manufactured, significant fluctuation in the value of the U.S. dollar against applicable
foreign currencies and restrictions on the transfer of funds.

Advertising and Promotion

The marketing program for the Company currently consists of the following integrated components,
which are planned at a minimum of 3.5% and a maximum of 4.0% of the Company’s net sales for fiscal 2005:

» The Company’szloyalty programs-the Passport Club and The Black Book (see page 6)
 Direct mail/catalogs

» National print and TV advertising

» Internet and direct phone sales

¢ Qutreach programs

In November 1999, an integrated marketing program was initiated with store mailers and national print
advertising reinforcing each other. The Passport Club database was expanded with inquiries from advertising
prospect mailings and signup drives in the stores. The catalogs were upgraded at that time to reflect a move
towards a sophisticated lifestyle. The mailers were successful in driving traffic into the stores and this program
has been expanded each year since. Most of the active Passport and Black Book customers maintained in the
database currently receive an average of one mailer per month. The national print ad and television programs
currently focus on magazines and television shows that have produced the best response rates for Chico’s
measured by inquiries over the telephone and the Company’s website. A regional and national test of television
ads for the Chico’s brand was conducted for the first time during fiscal 2001 with a strong response. Chico’s
increased its television advertising presence in fiscal 2002, 2003, and 2004 and as a result of perceived response
to such advertising, the Company plans to increase its television advertising further in fiscal 2005.

Internet and telephone sales began on a limited basis in fiscal 2000. Chico’s experienced sales (catalog
and Internet) of approximately $26.8 million in this area in fiscal 2004. Chico’s call center takes in thousands
of store location and catalog request inquiries per week. Chico’s anticipates approximately 54 million catalogs
or mailers, together with national print, television ads, and web presence will be part of a marketing budget
that will be between 3.5% and 4.0% of net sales during fiscal 2005, versus 3.7% of net sales in fiscal 2004,
which included approximately 42 million catalogs. In late fiscal 2003, the Company launched the first ever
catalog showcasing the WH | BM brand merchandise and anticipates continuing to produce catalogs, generally
monthly, for WH|BM in the future. The Company has also recently begun national magazine advertising for
WH[BM and will test. television advertisements for WH|BM for the first time in April 2005.

The Company also places additional emphasis on what it refers to as its “outreach programs.” These
outreach programs include, among other events, fashion shows and wardrobing parties that are organized and
hosted by its publicity manager, events coordinator, and by store managers and sales associates. As part of
thesc outreach programs, the Company also encourages its managers and sales associates to become involved
in community projects. The Company believes that these programs are effective marketing vehicles in
providing introductions.to new customers and it has developed programs to help its store level associates use
these programs. To that end, the Company established a Public Relations department to coordinate fashion
shows and events nationally and to obtain more awareness for such events in local newspapers and magazines.

AlL of the activities of marketing (creative direction, media scheduling/analysis, budgeting, direct
marketing, dutabase management, circulation, production, forecasting, public relations, web design and
adnunistration) are supervised in house, thus resulting in a coordinated effort and a unique look. Most
importantly. the structure helps the Company to keep pace with a fast moving merchandising schedule and
enables the Company (o reinforce its core concepts of “‘something new everyday” and “make women feel
beautiful.” ‘
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Competition

The women’s retail apparel business is highly competitive and has become even more competitive in the
past several years. The Company’s stores compete with a broad range of national and regional retail chains,
including other women’s apparel stores, department stores, and specialty stores, as well as local retailers in the
areas served by the Company’s stores, all of which sell merchandise generally similar to that offered in its
stores. Even discount department stores carry some merchandise which is designed to compete for some of the
consumers that historically have been the Company’s target customer.

Although management believes that there is currently limited direct competition for Chico’s and
WH |BM merchandise largely because of the distinctive nature of the Company’s stores and merchandise, the
retailers that are believed to most directly compete with Chico’s stores in many of the same local market areas
are the mid-to-high end department stores including Nordstrom’s, Dillards, Neiman-Marcus, Bloomingdale’s,
Marshall Field’s and Saks Fifth Avenue and specialty stores including The Gap, Talbots, J. Jill, The Limited,
Banana Republic, Christopher & Banks, and Coldwater Creck, as well as local boutique retailers in the areas
served by individual Chico’s stores. The retailers that are believed to most directly compete with WH|BM
stores are the same mid-to-high end department stores named above and specialty stores which include Ann
Taylor, Ann Taylor Loft, Banana Republic, Gap, Cache, Anthropologie, bebe, and Arden B. as well as local
boutiques. The number of competitors and the level of competition facing the Company’s stores vary by the
specific local market area served by individual Chico’s or WH|BM stores.

The Company believes that the distinctive designs of its clothing and accessories, which provide good
value, their exclusive availability at its stores, the Company’s emphasis on personalized service and customer
assistance, the locations of its stores, and its marketing programs, are the principal means by which the
Company competes.

Employees

As of January 29, 2005, the Company employed approximately 8,800 persons, approximately 45% of
whom were full-time associates and approximately 55% of whom were part-time associates. The number of
part-time associates fluctuates during peak selling periods. As of the above date, 90% of the Company’s
associates worked in Chico’s, WH|BM and Soma by Chico’s front-line and outlet stores, and in direct field
supervision, 2% worked in the distribution center and 8% worked in corporate headquarters and support
functions.

The Company has no collective bargaining agreements covering any of its associates, has never
experienced any material labor disruption and is unaware of any efforts or plans to organize its associates. The
Company contributes most of the cost of medical, dental and vision coverage for eligible associates and also
maintains a 401 (k), stock incentive and stock purchase plan. All associates also receive substantial discounts
on Company merchandise. The Company considers relations with its associates to be good.

Trademarks and Service Marks

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Chico’s Retail Services, Inc. is the owner of certain
trademarks and service marks (collectively referred to as “Marks”) and has a number of trademark and
service mark applications pending.

Marks and Applications Owned by Chico’s Retail Services, Inc.

In the United States, the Company owns the following Marks each of which is registered with the United
States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”): CHICO’S, CHICO’S PASSPORT, M.A.P.S.,, MARKET
BY CHICO’S, MOST AMAZING PERSONAL SERVICE, NO TUMMY, PASSPORT, BLACK
MARKET, THE WHITE HOUSE, WHITE HOUSE BLACK MARKET, and FASHION FOR BOTH
SIDES OF YOU. The Trademark CHICO’S has a term of 20 years (expiring, unless renewed, in 2009). The
balance of registrations have a term of 10 years (some of which expire, unless renewed, in 2012). Each of the
Marks is renewable indefinitely provided that it is still used in commerce at the time of the renewal.
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The Company is currently actively pursuing applications to register numerous other Marks with the
USPTO including SOMA BY CHICO’S, FOR BOTH SIDES OF YOU, THE BLACK BOOK, and MAKE
WOMEN FEEL BEAUTIFUL.

The Company is the owner in Canada of the registered trademark, CHICO’S, TRAVELERS, CHICO’S
PASSPORT, M.A.P.S., and WHITE HOUSE BLACK MARKET. The Company is actively pursuing
applications to register numerous other Marks in Canada including: MOST AMAZING PERSONAL
SERVICE, NO TUMMY, and PASSPORT.

The Company has registered the trademark CHICO’S in Puerto Rico and has trademark applications
pending for certain other Marks in: Australia, Bahamas, Brazil, and the European Union. These various
applications have been made in order to protect the Company’s Marks, if and when the Company decides to
expand its operations outside the United States.

The Company has also registered the trademark WHITE HOUSE BLACK MARKET in numerous
foreign countries including: Australia, Bermuda, the European Union, Japan, Mexico, the Bahamas and the
Netherland Antilles. These various registrations and applications have been made in order to protect the
Company’s Marks if and when the Company decides to expand its operations outside of the United States.

In the opinion of management, the Company’s rights in the Marks are important to the Company’s
business. Accordingly, the Company intends to maintain its Marks and the related registrations and
applications. The Company is not aware of any claims of infringement or other challenges to its rights to use
any registered Marks in the United States or any other jurisdiction in which the Marks have been registered.

Certain Additional Business Risk Factors

Investors in the Company“should consider the following risk factors as well as the other information
contained herein.

~ Effective Managemeni‘ of Growth Strategy

The Company’s continued growth depends on its ability to open and operate stores successfully and to
manage the Company’s plarined expansion. During fiscal 2005, the Company plans to open approximately
110-120 net new Company-owned stores, of which approximately 65-70 are expected to be Chico’s stores,
approximately 40-45 are expected to be WH|BM stores and up to 6 are expected to be Soma by Chico’s
stores. The Company’s planned expansion is dependent upon a number of factors, including locating suitable
store sites, negotiating favorable lease terms, sourcing sufficient levels of inventory, hiring and training
qualified management level and other associates, and integrating new stores into its existing operations. There
can be no assurance that the Company will achieve its planned expansion or that such expansion will be
profitable or that the Company will be able to manage its growth effectively.

Fluctuations in.Comparabie Store Sales Resuits

The Company’s comparable store sales results have fluctuated in the past on a monthly, quarterly and
annual basis, and are expected to continue to fluctuate in the future. A variety of factors affect comparable
store sales results, including changes in fashion trends, changes in the Company’s merchandise mix, timing of
catalog mailings, calendar shifts of holiday periods, actions by competitors, weather conditions, and general
economic conditions. Past comparable store sales results are not an indicator of future results, and there can be
no assurance that the Company’s comparable store sales results will not decrease in the future. In October
2004, the Company: included its WH|BM stores in its comparable store base for the first time. The
Company’s overall comparable store sales results are likely to have a significant effect on the market price of
the Company’s common stock.

Risks Associatéd with Internet Séles

- The Company sélls, merchandisé over the Internet through its website, www.chicos.com. Although the
Company’s catalog and Internet operations encompass only 2.5% of the Company’s total sales, the Company’s
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Internet operations are subject to numerous risks, including unanticipated operating problems, reliance on
third party computer hardware and software providers, system failures and the need to invest in additional
computer systems. The Internet operations also involve other risks that could have an impact on the
Company’s results of operations including hiring, retention and training of personnel to conduct the
Company’s Internet operations, diversion of sales from the Company’s stores, rapid technological change,
liability for online content, credit card fraud, risks related to the failure of the computer systems that operate
the website and its related support systems, including computer viruses, telecommunication failures and
electronic break-ins and similar disruptions. There can be no assurance that the Company’s Internet
operations will continue to achieve sales and profitability growth or even remain at their current level.

Dependence on Single Distribution Facility

The Company’s distribution functions for all of its stores and for catalog and Internet sales are handled
from a single facility in Barrow County, Georgia. Any significant interruption in the operation of the
distribution facility due to natural disasters, accidents, system failures or other unforeseen causes could delay
or impair the Company’s ability to distribute merchandise to its stores and/or fulfill catalog and Internet
orders, which could cause sales to decline.

Reliance on Key Personnel

The Company’s success and ability to properly manage its growth depends to a significant extent both
upon the performance of its current executive and senior management team and its ability to attract, hire,
motivate, and retain additional qualified management personnel in the future. The Company’s inability to
recruit and retain such additional personnel, or the loss of the services of any of its executive officers, could
have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Effects of War, Terrorism or Other Catastrophes

In response to the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, security has been heightened in public areas.
Any further threat of terrorist attacks or actual terrorist events, particularly in public areas, could lead to lower
customer traffic in regional shopping centers. In addition, local authorities or shopping center management
could close regional shopping centers in response to any immediate security concern. For example, on
September 11, 2001, a substantial number of the Company’s stores were closed early in response to the
terrorist attacks. Lower customer traffic due to security concerns and war, or the threat of war, could result in
decreased sales that would have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Merchandising/Fashion Sensitivity

The Company’s success is largely dependent upon its ability to gauge the fashion tastes of its customers
and to provide merchandise that satisfies customer demand in a timely manner. The Company’s failure to
anticipate, identify or react appropriately in a timely manner to changes in fashion trends could lead to lower
sales, excess inventories and more frequent markdowns, which could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s business. Misjudgments or unanticipated fashion changes could also have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s image with its customers. There can be no assurance that the Company’s new
products will be met with the same level of acceptance as in the past or that the failure of any new products
will not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Reliance on Foreign Sources of Production

Although the Company has significant portions of its manufacturing of clothing with United States
manufacturers, a majority of the Company’s clothing and accessories are still manufactured outside the
United States. As a result, the Company’s business remains subject to the various risks of doing business in
foreign markets and importing merchandise from abroad, such as: (i) political instability; (1) imposition of
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new legislation relating to import quotas that may limit the quantity of goods that may be imported into the
United States from!countries in a region that the Company does business; (1ii) imposition of duties, taxes, and
other charges on imports; (iv) foreign exchange rates; and (v) local business practice and political issues,
including issues relating to compliance with domestic or international labor standards.

The Company cannot predict whether any of the foreign countries in which its clothing and accessories
are currently manufactured or any of the countries in which the Company’s clothing and accessories may be
manufactured in the future will be subject to import restrictions by the United States government, including
the likelihood, type or effect of any trade retaliation. Trade restrictions, including increased tariffs or more
restrictive quotas, or both, applicable to apparel items could affect the importation of apparel generally and, in
that event, could increase the cost, or reduce the supply, of apparel available to the Company and adversely
affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The Company’s merchandise flow
and cost may also be adversely affected by political instability in any of the countries in which its goods are
manufactured and adverse changes in foreign exchange rates.

. Competition

The retail apparel and accessory industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with national,
international and local department stores, specialty and discount store chains, independent retail stores and
Internet and catalog businesses that market similar lines of merchandise. Many competitors are significantly
larger and have greater financial, marketing and other resources and enjoy greater national, regional and local
name recognition than does the Company. Depth of selection in sizes, colors and styles of merchandise,
merchandise procurement and pricing, ability to anticipate fashion trends and consumer preferences, inventory
control, reputation, quality of merchandise, store design and location, brand recognition and customer service
are all important factors in competing successfully in the retail industry.

The Company’s successful performance in recent years has increased the amount of imitation by other
retailers. Such imitation has made and will continue to make the retail environment in which the Company
operates more competitive.

General Econgmﬁc Conditions

The Company’s business fluctuates according to changes in consumer preferences, which are dictated in
part by fashion and season. In addition, certain economic conditions affect the level of consumer spending on
merchandise offered by the Company, including, among others, unemployment levels, business conditions,
interest rates, energy costs, taxation and consumer confidence in future economic conditions. Consumer
preference and economic conditions may differ or change from time to time in each market in which the
Company operates and negatively affect the Company’s net sales and profitability.

Reliance on Information Technology

The Company relies on various information systems to manage its operations and regularly makes
investments to upgrade, enhance or replace such systems. Any delays or difficulties in transitioning to these or
other new systems, or in integrating these systems with the Company’s current systems, or any other
disruptions affecting the Company’s information systems, could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s business.

Development and Growth of the WH|BM Brand

A significant portion of the Company’s business strategy involves developing and growing the WH |BM
store brand. The realization of future revenue growth, cost savings or synergies from the acquisition will
depend largely upon the Company’s ability to: (i) open and successfully operate new WH|BM stores;
(ii) maintain and enhance the brand identity of WH|BM stores while retaining key associates; (iii) execute
the Company’s strategies for the WH|BM brand without adversely impacting the Company’s existing
business; and (iv) substantially reducing the WH|BM administrative and corporate overhead and back office
expenses.
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There can be no assurance that the Company’s growth strategy for the WH|BM brand will achieve the
degree of consistent success necessary to generate profits or positive cash flow. If the Company cannot
successfully execute the growth strategy for the WH|BM brand, the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations may be adversely impacted.

Intimate Brand Concept

During fiscal 2004, the Company launched a new 10-store concept, Soma by Chico’s, in which the
product offering is focused around intimate apparel and sleep and relaxation wear for the Chico’s target
customer. There can be no assurance that these stores, or any other stores that the Company might open in the
future, will be successful or that the Company’s overall profitability will increase as a result of opening these
stores. The Company has committed significant financial and human resources to launching and developing
this concept. Recently, based on initial performance and perceived prospects and to help further refine the
concept, the Company announced that it plans to open up to 6 new Soma by Chico’s stores in fiscal 2005.
However, the Company cannot provide any assurance that current or future Soma by Chico’s stores will be
profitable or that this concept will prove to be a platform for future expansion.

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Company believes that its trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual and proprietary rights are
important to its success. Even though the Company takes action to establish, register and protect its
trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual and proprietary rights, there can be no assurance that the
Company will be successful or that others will not imitate the Company’s products or infringe upon other of
the Company’s intellectual property rights. In addition, there can be no assurance that others will not resist or
seek to block the sale of the Company’s products as infringements of their trademarks, copyrights, or other
proprietary rights. If the Company is required to stop using any of its registered or non-registered trademarks
or copyrights, the Company’s sales could decline and its business and results of operations could be adversely
affected.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

As of January 29, 2005, the Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets (trademark) totaled
approximately $61.8 million and $34.0 million, respectively. The Company acquired substantially all of the
goodwill and trademark value through its acquisition of The White House, Inc. At the time of the acquisition,
the Company determined that the WH|BM trademark had an indefinite useful life. Goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but rather are tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if impairment indicators arise. If the Company determines in the future that impairment has occurred, the
Company would be required to write off the impaired portion of goodwill or the trademark asset, which could
substantially impact the Company’s results of operations.

Volatility of Stock Price

The market price of the Company’s common stock has fluctuated substantially in the past and there can
be no assurance that the market price of the common stock will not continue to fluctuate significantly. Future
announcements or management discussions concerning the Company or its competitors, sales and profitability
results, quarterly variations in operating results or monthly comparable store net sales, changes in earnings
estimates by analysts or changes in accounting policies, among other factors, could cause the market price of
the common stock to fluctuate substantially. In addition, stock markets, in general, have experienced extreme
price and volume volatility in recent years. This volatility has had a substantial effect on the market prices of
securities of many public companies for reasons frequently unrelated to the operating performance of the
specific companies.
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Available Information

The Company’s website is located at www.chicos.com. Through this website, the Company makes
available free of charge all of its Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings including its annual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to
those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports are electronically filed with the SEC. The
Company also maintains various other data on this website, including its recent press releases, corporate
governance information, beneficial ownership reports, institutional slide show presentations, quarterly confer-
ence calls and other quarterly financial data, e.g. historical store square footage, monthly sales tables, etc.

The Company has a Code of Ethics, which is applicable to all associates of the Company, including the
principal executive officer, the principal financial officer, the principal accounting officer and the Board of
Directors. The Code of Ethics is available in the Investor Relations portion of the Company’s website or in
print upon written request by any shareholder. The Company intends to post amendments to or waivers from
its Code of Ethics (to the extent applicable to the Company’s chief executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or its Directors) at this location on its website. Copies of the charters of each of
the Company’s Audit Committee, Compensation and Benefits Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee (which also acts as the Company’s Nominating Committee) as well as the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines are also available on the website in the Investor Relations section or in print upon
written request by any shareholder.

. The Company has included the CEO and CFO certifications regarding its public disclosure required by
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this report on Form 10-K.
Additionally, the Company filed with the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) the CEO’s certification
regarding the Company’s compliance with the NYSE’s Corporate Governance Listing Standards (“Listing
Standards™) pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of the Listing Standards, which was dated July 15, 2004, and
indicated that the CEO was not aware of any violations of the Listing Standards by the Company.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Stores

The Company’s stores are located throughout the United States as well as the U.S. Virgin Islands and
Puerto Rico, with a significant concentration in California, Florida, Texas and the northeast United States.

As a matter of policy, the Company prefers to lease its stores and all the stores currently operated by the
Company are leased. Lease terms typically range from five to ten years and approximately 55% contain one or
more renewal options. Historically, the Company has exercised most of its lease renewal options. Approxi-
mately 73% of the leases have percentage rent clauses which require the payment of additional rent based on
the store’s net sales in excess of a certain threshold and approximately 34% have early cancellation clauses if
certain sales levels are not met in specific periods.

The following table, which covers all of the 660 Company-owned stores existing as of March 21, 2005,
sets forth (i) the number of leases that will expire each year if the Company does not exercise renewal options
and (ii) the number of leases that will expire each year if the Company exercises all of its renewal options
(assuming in each case the lease is not otherwise terminated by either party pursuant to any other provision

thereof):
‘ Leases Expiring Each Year  Leases Expiring Each Year

Fiscal Year Ending ‘ if No Renewals Exercised if All Renewals Exercised
January 28, 2006............ e 27 20
February 3, 2007 ................ e 67 18
February 2, 2008 . ............... e 67 11
January 31, 2009 and thereafter ................... 499 611




Distribution Center and Headquarters

The Company’s World Headquarters, which is located on approximately 35 acres in Ft. Myers, Florida,
was completed and initially opened in September 1994, with an office expansion that opened in January 2001.
Another office expansion at the headquarters occurred during fiscal 2003 to convert the area that was
previously the Company’s distribution center to office space and additional call center facilities. The facility
currently consists of its corporate and administrative headquarters that comprises approximately
147,000 square feet, currently used for administrative and design offices (including pattern making, sewing
and sampling activities).

During fiscal 2002, the Company acquired one acre with a 12,000 square foot office building situated
thereon for $0.8 million. This property is located adjacent to its headquarters land in Ft. Myers, Florida and is
being used as headquarters and offices for WH | BM. During fiscal 2003, the Company acquired 6.67 acres of
vacant land adjacent to its headquarters. This land was acquired for possible future expansion of the
Company’s current headquarters.

The Company anticipates that its current headquarters facility will be insufficient to meet its needs by the
end of fiscal 2006. Accordingly, the Company is engaged in strategic long-term planning to address its space
requirements for the future. The Company’s options include expanding its current headquarters facility,
building a new headquarters at a different location, or moving into an existing building in a different location.

In order to help with immediate space needs, the Company has leased approximately 12,500 square feet
of off-site space in the Ft. Myers area for its call center and will likely lease additional off-site space in the
Ft. Myers area to house discrete business units until its long-term solution is in place.

In fiscal 2002, the Company acquired 52 acres of land in Barrow County, Georgia and the existing
distribution center situated thereon. This facility consists of 202,000 square feet of distribution space and
31,000 square feet of office space. With this acquisition, the Company also secured a commitment from the
local county to permit the addition of up to another 200,000 square feet of distribution space and 6,000 square
feet of office space in the future. The Company paid approximately $7.2 million for the land and buildings and
spent $5.5 million to equip, modify, and accommeodate the move to the new facility.

The capacity of the Company’s new distribution center, after taking into account the modifications of the
facility and commitment from the local county to increase the distribution space, should be sufficient, in the
opinion of management, to service the Company’s needs for at least five years of future growth. The Company
is committed to an ongoing review of its facilities to properly address any other long-term distribution needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company was named as defendant in a putative class action suit filed in May 2003 in the Superior
Court for the State of California, County of San Francisco, Charissa Villanueva v. Chico’s FAS, Inc. The
Company filed an answer denying the material allegations of the Complaint. The Complaint alleges that the
Company, in violation of California law, has in place a mandatory uniform policy that requires its employees
to purchase and wear Chico’s clothing and accessories as a condition of employment. It is the Company’s
position that no such mandatory uniform policy exists. Although the Company believed it had strong defenses
to the allegations in this case, the Company agreed to participate in a voluntary private mediation on
November 10, 2004. A settlement was reached at the mediation, and the parties are in the process of preparing
and finalizing the settlement documents. The settlement must be approved by the Court at both a preliminary
and a final approval hearing before it becomes final. The Company does not believe the total settlement costs
will have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

The Company was named as the defendant in a suit filed in July 2004 in the Circuit Court of Lee County,
Florida, Ajit Patel v. Chico’s FAS, Inc. The Complaint alleges that the Company breached an implied contract
with the plaintiff, the Company’s former Vice President-Chief Information Officer, and, alternatively, that the
Company fraudulently induced the plaintiff to work for the Company. It is the Company’s position that no
contract, express or implied, existed between the Company and the plaintiff and that the Company did not
engage in any fraudulent conduct. The Company has filed an answer denying the material allegations of the
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Complaint and the parties are now engaged in the discovery process. No trial date has been set. The Company
believes the case is without merit and will continue to vigorously defend the litigation.

The Company is not a party to any other legal proceedings, other than various claims and lawsuits arising
in the normal course of business, none of which the Company believes should have a material adverse effect
on its financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

ITEM A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Company’s existing executive officers:

Years With
Name Age Company Positions
Scott A. Edmonds.. .. .. e Y] 11 President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director
Charles J. Kleman .................. .. 54 16 Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice
’ § President-Finance, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Director
" Patricia Murphy Kerstein . . T 61 7 Executive Vice President-Chief
' Merchandising Officer
‘ Mori C. MacKenzie ................... 55 9 Executive Vice President-Chief Stores
) ‘ Officer
James P. Frain.............. .. ... ... 56 6 Executive Vice President-Chief Marketing
Officer
Gary A King. ...l 47 * Executive Vice President-Chief
, _ Information Officer
Charles L. Nesbit, Jr. .......... e 49 *ok Executive Vice President-Operations
Barry I. Shapiro........ P 10 4 Senior Vice President-Distribution and
C Logistics
Patricia Darrow-Smith .. ..... P 43 1 Senior Vice President-General
Merchandise Manager-White House
Michael J. Kincaid .......... PR 47 5 Senior Vice President-Finance, Chief

Accounting Officer and Assistant Secretary

* Joined the Company in October 2004
** Joined the Company in Au‘gﬁst _2004

Scott A. Edmonds is President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Edmonds has been
employed by the Company since September 1993, when he was hired as Operations Manager. In February
1994, he was elected to the position of Vice President-Operations and, effective January 1, 1996, he was
promoted to the position of Senior Vice President-Operations. In February 2000, Mr. Edmonds was further
promoted to Chief Operating Officer, in September 2001, Mr. Edmonds was promoted to President, and in
September 2003, Mr. Edmonds was appointed to the additional office of Chief Executive Officer. Prior to
joining the Company in 1993, Mr. Edmonds was employed by Ferguson Enterprises, Inc.,"a plumbing and
electrical wholesale company since 1980. His last position with Ferguson was President of the Ft. Myers,
Florida Division. :

Charles J. Kleman, is Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice President-Finance, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer of the Company. Mr. Kleman has been employed by the Company since January 1989,
when he was hired as the Cormpany’s Controller. In 1991, he was elected as Vice President/Assistant
Secretary. In 1992, Mr. Kleman was designated as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. In September
1993, he was elected to the additional position of Secretary/Treasurer, served as Senior Vice President-
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Finance from January 1996 through November 1996, effective December 1996, was promoted to the position
of Executive Vice President-Finance, and effective. November 2003, was promoted to the additional position
of Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kleman was an independent accounting
consultant in 1988, and from 1986 to 1988, Mr. Kleman was employed by Electronic Monitoring & Controls,
Inc., a manufacturer and distributor of energy management systems, as its Vice President/Controller. Prior to
1986, Mr. Kleman was employed by various public accounting firms, spending over four years of that time
with Arthur Andersen & Co.

Patricia Murphy Kerstein is Executive Vice President-Chief Merchandising Officer for the Company.
Ms. Murphy Kerstein has been with the Company since September 1997, when she was hired as the Senior
Merchant. In April 1998, she was promoted to the position of General Merchandise Manager, in June 1999,
she was promoted to Vice President-General Merchandise Manager, in August 2000, she was promoted to
Senior Vice President-General Merchandise Manager, and in January 2003, Ms. Murphy Kerstein was
promoted to Executive Vice President-Chief Merchandising Officer. From February 1987 until September
1997, Ms. Murphy Kerstein was Vice President of Merchandising and Director of Fashion for Doncaster and
from October 1985 until February 1987 was Merchandiser and National Sales Manager for Caribou
Sportswear. From 1981 until 1985, she held various positions including Divisional Merchandise Manager and
Director of Fashion Coordination for Lane Bryant, a division of the Limited.

Mori C. MacKenzie is Executive Vice President-Chief Stores Officer for the Company. Ms. MacKenzie
has been with the Company since October 1995, when she was hired as the Director of Stores. From June
1999 until October 2001, she served as Vice President-Director of Stores. In October 2001, Ms. MacKenzie
was promoted to Senior Vice President-Stores, and effective February 2004 she was promoted to the position
of Executive Vice President-Chief Stores Officer. From January 1995 until October 1995, Ms. MacKenzie
was the Vice President of Store Operations for Canadians Corporation. From August 1994 until December
1994, she was the Vice President of Store Development for Goody’s Family Clothing. From April 1992 unti!
August 1994, Ms. MacKenzie was the Vice President of Stores for United Retail Group (“URG”) and from
August 1991 until April 1992 she was employed by Conston Corporation, a predecessor of URG. In addition,
Ms. MacKenzie was Vice President-Stores for Park Lane from November 1987 until July 1991, and was
Regional Director of Stores for the Limited, Inc. from June 1976 until October 1987.

James P. Frain is Executive Vice President-Chief Marketing Officer for the Company. Mr. Frain has
been employed by the Company since June 1999, when he was hired as the Company’s Director of Marketing.
In April 2000, he was promoted to the position of Vice President-Marketing, in November 2002, he was
promoted to Senior Vice President-Marketing and in April 2004, he was promoted to Executive Vice
President-Chief Marketing Officer. During 1998 and 1999, Mr. Frain was the Vice President-Marketing and
Creative for Current, Inc. and during 1997 and 1998, he was Vice President-Operations and Marketing for
A.H. Riise. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Frain was Vice President-Marketing for Easyriders and from 1993 to
1994, he was Vice President-Marketing for NBO. Mr. Frain held various marketing positions prior to 1994 at
Alfred Dunhill, Gueci, Laura Ashley, Conran’s and Paragon Sporting Goods.

Gary A. King is Executive Vice President-Chief Information Officer for the Company. Mr. King joined
the Company in October 2004 after five years at Barnes & Noble, Inc., where he most recently served as Vice
President, Chief Information Officer. From 1988 to 1999, Mr. King held various positions with Avon Products,
Inc. including Vice President, Global Information Technology. From 1982 to 1987, Mr. King held various
system management positions with Unisys Corporation and Burroughs Corporation.

Charles L. Nesbit, Jr. is Executive Vice President-Operations for the Company. Mr. Nesbit has been
with the Company since August 2004, when he was hired as Senior Vice President-Strategic Planning and
Business Development. He was promoted to Executive Vice President-Operations in April 2005. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Nesbit spent twenty years at the Sara Lee Corporation where he most recently
served as a corporate vice president and Chief Supply Chain Officer for the corporation’s U.S. and Canada
apparel operations. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Sara Lee Intimate Apparel, the
largest intimate apparel company in the United States and Canada, from 1999 to 2003, and President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bali Company from 1996 to 1999.
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Barry I. Shapiro is Senior Vice President-Distribution and Logistics for the Company. Mr. Shapiro joined
the Company in February 2001, as its Vice President-Outlet Strategies. From August 2002 until January
2004, Mr. Shapiro served as Senior Vice President-Pazo. His title was changed to Senior Vice President-
Distribution and Logistics in January 2004. From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Shapiro was employed by Off Fifth Saks-
Fifth Avenue Outlet as Senior Vice President-Stores and Operations. From 1990 to 1997, he held various
positions with Ann Taylor Stores Corporation including Executive Vice President of Ann Taylor Loft and
several other Senior Vice President positions with Ann Taylor. From 1989 to 1990, Mr. Shapiro was Store
Manager-Operations with Abraham and Strauss Department Stores, and from 1978 to 1989, Mr. Shapiro held
various positions with Lord and Taylor Department Stores and with Macy’s.

Patricia Darrow-Smith is Senior Vice President-General Merchandise Manager-White House for the
Company and Executive Vice President-Merchandising of White House | Black Market, Inc. a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Ms: Darrow-Smith joined the Company in September 2003 as Senior Vice
President-Merchandising of The White House, Inc. as a result of the acquisition of The White House, Inc. by
the Company. In April 2004, she was appointed Senior Vice President-General Merchandise Manager-White
House for the Company. From 1986 to September 2003 Ms. Darrow-Smith served as the most senior
merchandising executive of The White House, Inc., most recently as Executive Vice President, Merchandis-
ing. Ms. Darrow-Smith previously worked for the Hyatt Hotels Corporation.

Michael J. Kincaid is Senior Vice President-Finance, Chief Accounting Officer and Assistant Secretary
for the Company. Mr. Kincaid has been with the Company since August 1999 when he was hired as
Controller and Director of Finance. In October 2001, Mr. Kincaid was promoted to Vice President-Finance, in
November 2003, Mr. Kincaid was. promoted to the additional position of Chief Accounting Officer, in
December 2004, Mr. Kincaid Was elected to the additional position of Assistant Secretary, and in March 2005,
was promoted to Senior Vice President-Finance. From 1991 to 1999, Mr. Kincaid was employed by Tractor
Supply Company, most recently as Vice President-Controller, Treasurer and Secretary. From 1981 to 1991, he
held various management and accounting positions with Cole National Corporation, Revco D.S., Inc. and
Price Waterhouse.

There are no arrangements or understandings pursuant to which any officer was elected to office.
Executive officers are elected by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On April 11, 2001, the Company’s Common Stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) under the symbol “CHS”. From 1993 through April 10, 2001, the Company traded on NASDAQ
under the symbol “CHCS”. On March 21, 2005 the last reported sale price of the Common Stock on the
NYSE was $27.00 per share.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low sale prices for the
Common Stock, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange (adjusted for the 2-for-1 stock split
effectuated on February 22, 2005).

For the Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005 M__ Low

Fourth Quarter (October 31, 2004-January 29, 2005) ....... ... ....... ... $26.75 $18.86
Third Quarter (August 1, 2004-October 30, 2004) ........ ... . ... .. ..... 22.20 16.91
Second Quarter (May 2, 2004-July 31,2004) ....... ... ..., 23.40 18.68
First Quarter (February 1, 2004-May 1,2004) ....... .. .. ..., 23.80 18.35
For the Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004 _High Low

Fourth Quarter (November 2, 2003-January 31,2004) .................... $19.72  $15.26
Third Quarter (August 3, 2003-November 1, 2003) . ...................... 19.20 13.27
Second Quarter (May 4, 2003-August 2,2003) ....... ... i 13.92 9.40
First Quarter (February 2, 2003-May 3,2003) ........ ..., 12.25 8.38

Although the Company does not intend to pay any cash dividends over the near term and intends to retain
its earnings for the future operation and expansion of the Company’s business, the Company may reconsider
this intention as the Company monitors its build up of cash reserves. Any determination to pay dividends in
the future will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will be dependent, in addition,
upon the Company’s results of operations, financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors
deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

In September 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the repurchase, over a twelve-month
period ending in September 20035, of up to $100 million of the Company’s outstanding common stock. The
Company repurchased 275,000 shares of its common stock during the third quarter of fiscal 2004 in
connection with this stock repurchase program, at a total cost of approximately $5.0 million; no additional
repurchases occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

The approximate number of equity security holders of the Company is as follows:

Number of Record Holders
Title of Class as of March 21, 2005

Common Stock, par value $.01 pershare ........................... 1,626
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Financial Data at the dates and for the periods indicated should be read in conjunction with, and
is qualified in its entirety by reference to the financial statements and the notes thereto referenced elsewhere
and incorporated in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company’s fiscal years end on the Saturday
closest to January 31 and are designated by the calendar year in which the fiscal year commences.

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, February 1, February 2, February 3,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (53 weeks)

{(In thousands, except per share and selected operating data)

(1)
Net sales by Chico’s/Somastores ................... $ 889,429 $698,100 $508,492  $362,443  $252,168
Net sales by WHIBM stores ..........covvvinnnn... 142,092 39,818 — — —
Net sales by catalog and Internet.................... 26,831 22,780 16,070 10,203 2,656
Net sales to franchisees(2) ............ccooivin... 8,530 7,801 6,546 5,439 4,622
Netsales ... i .. 1,066,882 768,499 531,108 378,085 259,446
Cost of goods sold(3) ... ... .. ... ..o 411,908 297,477 209,770 153,937 108,671
Grossprofit . ....... ... . 654,974 471,022 321,338 224,148 150,775
General, administrative and store operating expenses(4) 398,117 289,118 199,495 146,611 99,757
Depreciation and amortization ...................... 32,481 21,130 15,050 10,001 5,655
Income from operations . ....................... 224,376 160,774 106,793 67,536 45,363
Interest income, net ........ ...t ninnnn.. 2,327 888 883 507 409
Income before taxes .. ..., 226,703 161,662 107,676 68,043 45,772
Provision for income taxes. ... 85,497 61,432 40,917 25,856 17,393
Netincome .. ...t $ 141,206 $100,230 $ 66,759 $ 42,187 $ 28,379
Basic net income per share(5) ........ e $ 079 $ 058 $ 040 $ 026 § 0.18
Diluted net income per share(5) .................... $ 078 $§ 057 § 039 $ 025 § 0.17
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic(5) ......... 178,256 172,805 166,618 160,731 156,168
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted(5) ....... 180,149 176,284 172,064 167,557 163,331
Selected Operating Data:
Total stores at period end ............ ... .. ... ... 657 557 378 31t 250
Average net sales per Company store (in thousands):(6)
Chico™s . ... o e e e $ 2,010 $ 1,783 $ 1,556 $ 1,385 $ 1,200
WHI|BM ..... P 995 862 — — —_

Average net sales per net selling square foot. at
Company stores (in thousands):(é)

Chico™s. . oot $ 988 $ 924 $§ 849 §$§ 815 $ 809
WHIBM .. 814 767 — — —
Percentage increase in comparable Company store net
sales ... 12.9% 16.1% 13.5% 17.1% 34.3%
Balance Sheet Data (at year end):
Total assets .. ..o $ 715,729 $470,854  $301,544  $186,385  $117,807
Long-termdebt........... .. ... — — — 5,022 5,150
Other noncurrent liabilities ......................... 59,546 24,437 6,551 2,922 2,008
Stockholders’ equity ... ....... ... . i 560,868 374,835 240,133 143,495 85,321
Working capital ............. . ... . oo $ 269,252  $125991  $105,570 § 58,045 $ 25,459

(1) Includes results from The White House, Inc. since September 5, 2003.

(2) Includes franchisee fees of under $10,000 in certain fiscal years. )

(3) Cost of goods sold includes distribution, merchandising and product development costs, but does not include
occupancy cost.

(4) Includes a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately $4.1 million, pre-tax in the fiscal year ended

January 29, 20035, related to the timing of rent expense for store locations of which $3.4 million, pre-tax or
$.012 per diluted share, related to prior periods.

(5) Restated to give retroactive effect for the 2 for 1 stock splits in February 2005 and July 2002 and for the 3 for 2
stock splits payable in May 2001 and January 2002.

(6) Average net sales per Company store and average net sales per net selling square foot at Company stores are
based on net sales of stores that have been operated by the Company for the full year. For the year ended
February 3, 2001, average net sales per Company store and average net sales per selling square foot at
Company stores have been adjusted to exclude the effect of the fifty-third week.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto,

Executive Overview

The Company is a specialty retailer of private label, sophisticated, casual-to-dressy clothing, intimates,
complementary accessories, and other non-clothing gift items operating under the Chico’s, WH|BM and
Soma by Chico’s brand names.

Chico’s, which began operations in 1983, focuses on women who are 35 years old and up with moderate
and higher income levels. The styling is relaxed, figure-flattering and designed for easy care. WH|BM, which
the Company acquired in September 2003, targets middle-to-upper income youthful women who are 25 years
old and up. The styling is contemporary, feminine and unique, assorted primarily in the classic and timeless
colors of white and black and related shades. Soma by Chico’s was initially launched in August 2004, This
concept offers foundation products in intimate apparel, sleepwear, bodywear and active wear that is aimed at
the Chico’s target customer, but with focus and styling that is expected to ultimately appeal to a broader
customer base.

The Company earns revenues and generates cash through the sale of merchandise in its retail stores, to its
Chico’s franchisees, and through its call center, which handles sales related to the Chico’s catalog and online
operations.

Since the Company opened its first Chico’s store in 1983 principally selling folk art, its retail store system,
now selling principally women’s apparel, has grown to 672 stores as of March 21, 2005, of which 481 are
Company-owned Chico’s stores, 12 are Chico’s franchised stores, 169 are WH | BM stores and 10 are Soma by
Chico’s stores. During fiscal 2004, the Company completed the closing/conversion process for its 9 remaining
Pazo stores by converting five stores to the WH|BM concept and three stores to the Soma by Chico’s concept
while closing the remaining Pazo store.

From January 29, 2000 through January 29, 2005, the Company opened 364 new Company-owned stores,
acquired one store from a franchisee, and one franchisee opened four new franchised stores. Of the new
Company-owned stores, 109 were opened in fiscal 2004 (net of the 8 former Pazo stores that were closed and
converted into 5 WH|BM stores and 3 Soma by Chico’s stores), 74 were opened in fiscal 2003, 66 were
opened in fiscal 2002, 64 were opened in fiscal 2001 and 51 were opened in fiscal 2000. During this same time
period, the Company closed 18 Company-owned stores and no franchised stores were closed.

The Company expects to open between 110 and 120 net new stores during fiscal vear 2005. Of this total,
approximately 65-70 are expected to be Chico’s stores, approximately 40-45 are expected to be WH|BM
stores and up to 6 are expected to be Soma by Chico’s stores. In addition, the Company is evaluating certain
existing Company-owned store locations, including stores with leases coming up for renewal, and is
considering the possibility of closing between 2 and 8 existing Company-owned stores in fiscal 2003.

In September 2003, the Company acquired The White House, Inc., and its concept, WH|{BM, for
approximately $93 million, of which approximately $88 million consisted of cash consideration (net of cash
acquired) and the balance consisted of the Company’s common stock. The White House, Inc. was a privately
held retailer, which owned 107 stores in 30 states, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin [slands, on the closing date
of the acquisition. The Company remains positive about the acquisition and believes that the acquisition will
strengthen its position in the specialty retail market and will contribute to the Company’s overall growth
strategy.

The primary factors which historically have influenced the Company’s profitability and success have been
its growth in number of stores, its growth in comparable store sales, and its increased operating margin arising
out of improved gross profit margin and leverage of operating costs. In the last five years the Company has
grown from 200 stores as of January 29, 2000 to 657 stores as of January 29, 2005, which includes the
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significant store growth resulting from the acquisition of WH|BM in fiscal 2003. The Company continues to
expand its presence through the opening of new stores, the development of new opportunities such as Soma by
Chico’s and through the extension. of its merchandise line. The Company anticipates that its rate of growth
(measured by overall growth in sales, growth in comparable store sales, and other factors) can be expected to
decrease from the 40% plus rate of overall sales growth experienced in prior vears, largely reflecting the
Company’s significantly increased size, its 20% net square footage growth goal and the expectation that its
same store sales increases will- moderate. Nevertheless, even at a reduced growth rate, the Company expects to
continue its ability to generate the necessary cash flow to fund its expansion and to take advantage of new
opportunities, The Company has no long-term debt and foresees no current need to incur long-term debt to
support its continued growth

Factors that will be critical to determining the Company’s future success include, among others,
managing the overall growth strategy, including the ability to open and operate stores effectively, maximizing
efﬁc1en<:1es in the merchandising, product development and sourcing processes, maintaining high standards for
customer service and, assistance, maintaining the newness, fit and comfort in its merchandise offerings,
customer acceptance of new store concepts, and generating cash to fund the Company’s expansion needs. In
order to monitor the Company s success, the Company’s senior management monitors certain key perform-
ance indicators, 1nclud1ng

« Comparable same store sales growth — In fiscal 2004, the Company’s comparable store sales growth
(sales from stores open for at least twelve full months, including stores that have been expanded or
relocated within the same general market) was 12.9%. This increase represents the eighth consecutive
year in which the Company has experienced double-digit comparable store sales growth. The Company
believes that comparable store sales growth, although not necessarily double-digit growth, is a critical
success factor and a positive indication of the Company’s ability to manage its expansion and its ability
to open and operate stores effectively. Maintaining comparable same store sales growth over an
extended period of time into the future can be impacted by saturation, customer receptiveness to new
product offerings and price elasticity, among other factors. In October 2004, the acquired WH|BM
stores entered into the' comparable store base. As a result, the ability of the Company to maintain
strong comparable’ same store sales increases within the WH]| BM stores will be important to the ability
of the Company to contmue its comparable same store sales growth

* Positive operatzng cash flow.— In fiscal 2004, the Company generated $224 million of cash flow from
operations compared. with $145 miilion in fiscal 2003, which represents an increase of 53.8%. Reflected
in the $224 million of cash flow from operations are the effects of lease accounting changes completed
by the Company, in fiscal 2004 that had the effect of increasing reported cash flows from operations by
$13.1 million. Approximately 19% of the increase in operating cash flow was attributable to the
increase in the tax benefit from an unusual volume of stock option exercises, and the remaining cash
flow increase represented a growth of over 40%. The Company believes a key strength of its business is
the historical ability to consistently generate cash. Strong cash flow generation is critical to the future
success of the Company, not ‘only to support the general operating needs of the Company, but also to
fund capital expendltures related to new store openings, relocations, expansions and remodels, to fund
additional infrastructure costs associated with the distribution center and headquarters, to continue
funding implementation of state of the art information systems and to fund any potential strategic
acquisitions. Cash flow can be negatively impacted by a slow down in sales, higher costs of goods sold
as a percentage of sales and increased selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
sales. See further discussion of the Company’s cash flows in the Liquidity and Capital Resources
section.

= Loyalty Clubs — Management believes that a significant indicator of the Company’s success with its
personalized customer service training programs and the success of its marketing initiatives is the
growth of the Chico’s loyalty program, the “Passport Club.” The Passport Club features discounts and
other special promotions for its members. Preliminary members may join the Passport Club at no cost
and upon spending $500, customers automatically become permanent members and are entitled to a
lifetime 5% discount-and other benefits. During fiscal 2004, the Company added 354,000 permanent

32




Passport Club members and 860,000 preliminary Passport Club members. In fiscal 2004, permanent
Passport Club members accounted for approximately 76% of overall sales, about the same as in fiscal
2003. The Company believes that the growth of its Passport Club indicates that the Company is still
generating strong interest from new customers, many of whom tend to become long-term loyal
customers, due in large part to the Company’s commitment to personalized customer service and
constant newness of product.

The Company introduced a new frequent shopper program at its WH|BM stores during October 2004
called “The Black Book”. The Black Book loyalty program is similar to the Passport Club in all key
respects except that members become permanent upon spending $300. Since The Black Book was
introduced in October 2004 and as of January 29, 2005, WH|BM has added over 60,000 permanent
members and over 616,000 preliminary members. Since being launched, the permanent Black Book
members have accounted for 25% of overall sales, while preliminary members have accounted for 48%
of overall sales.

s Quality and merit of merchandise offerings — To monitor and maintain the acceptance of its
merchandise offerings, the Company monitors sell-through levels, inventory turns, gross margins and
markdown rates on a classification and style level. Although the Company does not disclose these
statistics for competitive reasons, this analysis helps identify comfort, fit and newness issues at an early
date and helps the Company plan future product development and buying.

In fiscal year 2004, the Company reported net sales, operating income and net income of $1.1 billion,
$224 million and $141 million, respectively, up 38.8%, 39.6% and 40.9%, from the prior fiscal year. The
Company’s gross margin increased to 61.4% in fiscal 2004 from 61.3% in fiscal 2003. The increases in
operating income and net income benefited significantly from the leverage associated with the Company’s
fiscal 2004 comparable store sales increase of 12.9%. Sales and profitability trends are further discussed in the
Results of Operations section.

Resuits of Operations
Net Sales

The following table shows net sales by Company-owned stores, net sales by catalog and Internet and net
sales to franchisees in dollars and as a percentage of total net sales for the fiscal years ended January 29, 2005
(fiscal 2004 or “current period™), January 31, 2004 (fiscal 2003 or “prior period”) and February 1, 2003
{fiscal 2002) (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fiscal 2004 %o Fiscal 2003 % Fiscal 2002 %
Net sales by Chico’s/Soma stores .. $ 889,429 83.4% $698,100 90.8% $508,492 95.8%
Net sales by WH|BM stores ...... 142,092 13.3 39,818 52 —_ —_—
Net sales by catalog and Internet .. 26,831 2.5 22,780 3.0 16,070 3.0
Net sales to franchisees. .......... 8,530 0.8 7,801 1.0 6,546 1.2
Netsales..................... $1,066,882 1000  $768,499  100.0  $531,108  100.0
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Net sales by Company-owned stores increased over the past three years, both in the aggregate and
separately by brand, primarily due to new store openings, the acquisition of The White House, Inc. on
September 5, 2003, as well as from double-digit increases in the Company’s comparable store net sales
(including stores within the coraparable store base that have been expanded or relocated within the same
general market). Fiscal 2004 includes 12 full months of net sales for WH | BM stores whereas fiscal 2003 only
includes approximately 5 months of net sales for WH|BM running from the date of the acquisition. A
summary of the factors impacting year-over-year sales increases is provided in the table below (dollar amounts
in thousands):

Fiscal 2004  Fiscal 2003  Fiscal 2002

Comparable store sales increases. .................. . .... $ 93,037 $ 80,935 $48,286
Comparable same store sales %. ..., 12.9% 16.1% 13.5%
New store sales ........ [P $200,566  $148,491 $97,763
Number of new Company-owned stores opened, net ....... 99 72%* 66

* Stores acquired in the WH|BM acquisition are not counted as new Company-owned stores opened, and
such stores are also not included in the computation of comparable same store sales until October 2004

The comparable store sales increase of 12.9% in fiscal 2004 was driven primarily by an increase in the
number of transactions compared to fiscal 2003 and, to a lesser extent, from an increase of 1.5% in the Chico’s
average unit retail price (which is a financial indicator, the percentage change of which is believed by
management to represent a reasonable approximation of the percentage change in Company store net sales
attributable to price changes). The comparable store sales increase of 16.1% in fiscal 2003 was driven
primarily by an increase in the number of transactions compared to fiscal 2002 and, to a lesser extent, from an
increase of 3.1% in the Chico’s average unit retail price.

WH|BM stores were included in the comparable store sales calculation beginning in October 2004,
which was 12 full months after the acquisition date of September 5, 2003. For fiscal 2004, WH | BM sales prior
to October 2004 are included in new store sales. Sales from WH|BM stores since the date of acquisition on
September 5, 2003 and through the end of fiscal 2003 were included in new store sales for fiscal 2003 and no
such sales were included in fiscal 2003 comparable store sales. Sales from the Company’s discontinued Pazo
store concept in fiscal 2004 and 2003 have been included in the new store sales for the applicable periods and
no such sales are included in comparable store sales. Sales from the Soma by Chico’s store concept in fiscal
2004 are included in new store sales and are not included in comparable store sales because no Soma stores
have yet been open a full 12 months.

Net sales by catalog and Internet for fiscal 2004 (which only included Chico’s and Soma merchandise)
increased by $4.1 million, or 17.8%, compared to net sales by catalog and Internet for fiscal 2003. It is believed
that the increase was principally attributable to the increased circulation of catalog mailings and additional
television spots in the current year versus the prior period.

Net sales by catalog and Internet for fiscal 2003 (which only included Chico’s merchandise) increased by
$6.7 million, or 41.8%, compared to net sales by catalog and Internet for fiscal 2003. It is believed that the
increase was principally aftributable to the increased page count and number of catalog mailings and
additional television spots in the current year versus the prior period.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profit

The following table shows cost of goods sold and gross profit in dollars and the related gross profit
percentages for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 (dollar amounts in thousands):
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003  Fiscal 2002

Costofgoodssold............. ... ... ... .ovii. ... $411,908  $297,477  $209,770
Gross profit ........ ... . .. $654,974  $471,022  $321,338
Gross profit percentage . ..........cooviniiii 61.4% 61.3% 60.5%



The increase in the gross profit percentage from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 was positively impacted by
improved margins at the Chico’s frontline stores (mainly due to improved initial merchandise markups which
were offset, to a lesser degree, by increased markdowns as a percent of net sales) and, to a lesser extent, from
significantly improved margins at the Company’s outlet stores. Also, but to a lesser degree, the gross profit
percentage was positively impacted by operating efficiencies associated with the Company’s new distribution
center (the costs of which are included in the Company’s cost of goods sold). The gross profit percentage was
adversely impacted by WH |BM sales, which carried a lower gross profit percentage than sales at Chico’s
frontline stores (WH|BM merchandise margins were approximately 5 percentage points lower than the
merchandise margins at Chico’s) and an increase in product development costs, as a percentage of net sales,
primarily due to an investment in the WH|BM merchandise and product development teams and costs
associated with the launch of the Soma by Chico’s brand in the third quarter of fiscal 2004. To a lesser extent,
the gross profit percentage was adversely impacted by increased inventory clearance costs.

The increase in the gross profit percentage from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2003 primarily resulted from
operating efficiencies related to the Company’s new distribution center (which costs are included in the
Company’s cost of goods sold). To a lesser extent, the improvement in the gross profit percentage was from
improved margins at the Chico’s frontline and outlet stores (which improvement resulted from improved
initial merchandise markups on new products in the current period versus the prior period offset, in part, by
increased markdowns in the current period as a percent of net sales) and, to an even lesser degree, from
decreased inventory and related shrinkage costs. These improvements in the gross profit percentage were also
offset, in part, by WH | BM and Pazo sales, which in fiscal 2003 carried a lower gross profit percentage than the
Company as a whole.

General, Administrative and Store Operating Expenses
The following table shows general, administrative and store operating expenses in dollars and as a
percentage of total net sales for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 (dollar amounts in thousands):
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002

General, administrative and store operating expenses. . ... .. $398,117  $289,118  $199,495
Percentage of total net sales ........................... 37.3% 37.6% 37.6%

The increase in general, administrative and store operating expenses was, for the most part, the result of
increases in the Company’s store operating expenses, including associate compensation, occupancy and other
costs associated with additional store openings (including those costs associated with the WH|BM stores
added by virtue of the acquisition in the third quarter of fiscal 2003) and, to a lesser degree, an increase in
marketing expenses and other general corporate infrastructure costs to support the Company’s rapid growth.

The increase in general, administrative and store operating expenses was also impacted by the Company’s
decision, in connection with a review of its accounting practices relating to leasing transactions, to record a
one-time, non-cash adjustment related to the timing of rent expense for store locations. Previously, the
Company followed a practice prevalent across the retailing industry, in which it recognized the straight line
rent expense for leases beginning generally on the earlier of the store opening date or lease commencement
date, which had the effect of excluding the build-out period of its stores from the calculation of the period over
which it expensed rent. The Company now records rent expense when it takes possession of a store, which
occurs before the commencement of the lease term or approximately 45-60 days prior to the opening of the
store. This adjustment resulted in a one-time, cumulative, non-cash increase to rent expense of approximately
$4.1 million pre-tax. Of the $4.1 million pre-tax expense recorded in fiscal 2004, $0.7 million was attributable
to the current year and $3.4 million pre-tax, was related to prior fiscal years.

Furthermore, the Company revised the manner in which it accounts for construction allowances from
landlords of properties leased by the Company for its stores. For fiscal 2004 and for future fiscal years,
construction allowances will be amortized as a reduction of rent expense, rather than being amortized as a
reduction of depreciation expense, which was the approach followed in prior fiscal years. For fiscal 2004, the
impact of amortizing construction allowances as a reduction of rent expense rather than as a reduction of
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depreciation expense resulted in a decrease to rent expense of approximately $4.2 million. The net impact of
these two lease accounting adjustments was immaterial to general, administrative and store operating expenses
in total and as a percentage of total net sales.

General, administrative and store operating expenses as a percentage of net sales improved 30 basis points
over the prior period primarily because there was $2.9 million of store closing costs associated with the
conclusion of the Pazo test concept included in fiscal 2003 with no comparable expense in fiscal 2004.
General, administrative and store operating expenses as a percentage of net sales was positively impacted
during fiscal 2004 by decreases in Chico’s store operating expenses as a percentage of net sales compared to
fiscal 2003 due primarily to leverage improvements in store personnel and occupancy costs associated with the
Company’s current period comparable store sales increase of 12.9%. This improvement was offset to a lesser
extent by costs associated with the WH |BM store operating expenses, which tend to run higher than Chico’s
stores operating expenses as a percentage of net sales. Store operating expenses as a percentage of net sales
was also negatively impacted, but to an even lesser degree, by increased marketing costs as a percentage of net
sales; costs related to the interim continuation of the WH |BM corporate headquarters and related functions;
and costs associated with the Company’s Sarbanes-Oxley initiatives.

General, administrative and store operating expenses increased $89.6 million in fiscal 2003 compared to
fiscal 2002, but remained constant as a percent of total net sales. The increase in absolute dollars was, for the
most part, the result of increases in Chico’s store operating expenses, including associate compensation,
occupancy and other costs associated with additional store openings, the acquisition of the WH|BM stores
and, to a lesser degree, an increase in marketing expenses and other general corporate infrastructure costs to
support the Company’s rapid growth. General, administrative and store operating expenses as a percentage of
net sales experienced a decrease compared to fiscal 2002 due to decreases in Chico’s store associate
compensation and store occupancy costs as a percentage of net sales and by leverage associated with the
Company’s fiscal 2003 comparable store sales increase of 16.1%. However, these decreases were offset by the
effect of the Pazo concept stores, including approximately $3.2 million of store closing costs associated with
the conclusion of the Pazo concept (including a $2.9 million fixed asset impairment charge), and WH|BM
stores, which operate with considerably higher store operating expenses as a percent of net sales compared to
Chico’s. ‘

Depreciation and Amortization

The following table shows depreciation and amortization in dollars and as a percentage of total net sales
for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 (dollar amounts in thousands):

‘ Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Depreciation and amortization. . ...............co.vun... $32,481 $21,130 $15,050
Percentage of total net sales ........................... 3.0% 2.7% 2.8%

The increase in depreciation and amortization expense from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 was, for the most
part, due to capital expenditures related to new, remodeled and expanded stores. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion expense, in dollars and as a percentage of total net sales, was also impacted by the Company’s revision to
the manner in which it accounts for construction allowances from landlords of properties leased by the
Company for its stores, as discussed above. The impact of this revision was to increase depreciation expense in
fiscal 2004 by approximately $4.2 million with an offsetting decrease in rent expense of $4.2 million.

The increase in depreciation and amortization expense from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2003 was, for the most
part, due to capital expenditures related to new, remodeled and expanded stores. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion as a percentage of total net sales for fiscal 2003 was comparable to the prior year.

Provision for Income Taxes

During fiscal 2004, the Company completed a review of the taxability of its operations in various state
taxing jurisdictions and adjusted its income tax provision for fiscal 2004 resulting in an effective tax rate of
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approximately 37.7%, which remains comparable to the 38% effective tax rate in each of fiscal 2003 and fiscal
2002. The Company expects that its effective tax rate in future years will approximate 38%.

Net Income

The following table shows net income in dollars and as a percentage of total net sales for fiscal 2004, 2003
and 2002 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fiscal 2004  Fiscal 2003  Fiscal 2002

Net INCOME ..ot e, $141,206  $100,230 $66,759
Percentage of total net sales ........................... 13.2% 13.0% 12.6%

Comparable Company Store Net Sales

Comparable Company store net sales increased by 12.9% in the 52 weeks ended January 29, 2005 when
compared to the comparable prior period. Comparable Company store net sales data is calculated based on the
change in net sales of currently open Company-owned stores that have been operated as a Company store for
at least twelve full months, including stores that have been expanded or relocated within the same general
market area (approximately five miles).

The comparable store percentage reported above includes 52 stores that were expanded or relocated
within the last two fiscal years by an average of 965 net selling square feet. If the stores that were expanded
and relocated had been excluded from the comparable Company-owned store base, the increase in comparable
Company-owned store net sales would have been 11.9% for fiscal 2004 (versus 12.9% as reported). The
Company does not consider the effect to be material to the overall comparable store sales results and believes
the inclusion of expanded stores in the comparable store net sales to be an acceptable practice, consistent with
the practice followed by the Company in prior periods and by some other retailers. WH | BM stores acquired in
The White House, Inc. acquisition were included in the comparable store sales calculation for the first time
beginning in October 2004 and WH |BM stores opened since the acquisition are treated the same as all other
Company-owned stores.

The Company believes that the increase in comparable Company store net sales in the current fiscal year
resulted from the continuing effort to focus the Company’s product development, merchandise planning,
buying and marketing departments on the Company’s target customers. The Company also believes that the
look, fit and pricing policy of the Company’s product was in line with the needs of the Company’s target
customers. In addition, the Company believes that the increase in comparable store sales was also fueled by a
coordinated marketing plan, which includes national and regional television advertising, national magazine
advertising, increased direct mailings of catalogs, a larger database of existing customers for such mailings and
the success of the Company’s frequent shopper clubs. Te a lesser degree, the Company believes the increase
was due to continued store-level training efforts associated with ongoing training programs and the Company’s
overall ability to maintain its high standards for customer service and assistance.

The following table sets forth for each of the quarters of the previous five fiscal years, the percentage
change in comparable store net sales at Company-owned stores from the comparable period in the prior fiscal
year:

Fiscal Year Ended

1/29/05 1/31/04 2/1/03 2/2/02 2/3/01

Full Year ........ ... . ... ... .. ... .. ..... 12.9% 16.1% 13.5% 17.1% 34.3%

First Quarter ........................ ... .... 20.1% 7.8% 132% 27.7% 30.9%

Second Quarter ................. i, 14.1% 146% 11.6% 17.4% 34.3%

Third Quarter. ................. ... ... .. ... 61%  20.9% 18.2% 7.0%  39.1%

Fourth Quarter. .............. ... ... ... .... 12.9% 205% 11.0% 17.9% 32.2%
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

The Company’s primary ongoing capital requirements are for funding capital expenditures for new,
expanded, relocated and remodeled stores and increased merchandise inventories, for expansion of headquar-
ters and other central support facilities and for continued improvement in information technology tools. The
Company anticipates that its current headquarters facility will be insufficient to meet its needs by the end of
fiscal 2006. Accordingly, the Company is engaged in strategic long-term planning to address its space
requirements for the future. The Company’s options include expanding its current headquarters facility,
building a new headquarters at a different location, or moving into an existing building in a different location.

In order to help with immediate space needs, the Company has leased off-site space for its call center and
will likely lease additional off-site space to house discrete business units until its long-term solution is in place.

Also, to a lesser degree, during fiscal 2004, the Company experienced the need for working capital to
address the launching of its new intimate apparel concept, Soma by Chico’s, whose stores began opening
during the third quarter of fiscal 2004.

The following table shows the Company’s capital resources at the end of fiscal year 2004 and 2003
(amounts in thousands):
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003

Cash and cash equivalents.............ccovvvreinnno... IO $ 14426 § 15,676
Marketable SECUIItIES . . . ..ottt 251,199 104,453
Working capital. . ... .. 269,252 125,991

Working capital increased from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 primarily due to the Company’s ability to
generate significant cash from operating activities (in large part due to the Company’s strong comparable store
sales), which cash was substantially more than necessary to satisfy the Company’s investment in capital
expenditures. The significant components of the Company’s working capital are cash and cash equivalents,
marketable securities and inventories, reduced by accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Based on past performance and current expectations, the Company believes that its cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and cash generated from operations will satisfy the Company’s working
capital needs, capital expenditures (see “New Store Openings and Headquarters Expansion” discussed
below), commitments and other liquidity requirements associated with the Company’s operations through at
least the next 12 months.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $223.6 million and $145.4 million for fiscal 2004 and 2003,
respectively. As part of its review of accounting practices related to lease transactions, beginning in fiscal 2004,
the Company has included construction allowances received from landlords as cash provided by operating
activities whereas in prior years, these allowances were recorded as a reduction of capital expenditures, within
cash flows from investing activities. The impact to net cash provided by operating activities was an increase of
$13.1 million in fiscal 2004, provided however, that this change had no impact on overall cash flow. The cash
provided by operating activities for both periods was due to the Company’s net income adjusted for non-cash
charges and changes in working capital such as:

» Depreciation and amortization expense;

o Normal fluctuations in accounts receivable, inventories, prepaid and other current assets, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Significant adjustments to net income for fiscal 2004 included:

= A non-cash tax benefit of $27.3 million related to the exercise of employee stock options.
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Significant adjustments to net income for fiscal 2003 included:
+ A non-cash tax benefit of $15.1 million related to the exercise of employee stock options; and

+ A non-cash charge of $2.9 miilion associated with the impairment of assets related to the Pazo store
closings.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $241.3 million and $153.3 million for fiscal 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Net cash used in investing activities was significantly impacted in fiscal 2003 by the acquisition of
The White House, Inc. The cash paid for the acquisition was approximately $87.6 million (net of cash
acquired of $1.3 million).

The Company’s investment in capital expenditures during fiscal 2004 primarily related to the planning
and opening of new, relocated, remodeled and expanded Chico’s, WH|BM, and Soma by Chico’s stores
($73.5 million), distribution center infrastructure costs ($5.8 million), installation costs associated with new
software packages and systems integration of the WH|BM ($5.4 million) and other miscellaneous capital
expenditures ($8.4 million). Capital expenditures increased by $40.8 million from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004
primarily as a result of more new store openings in fiscal 2004 when compared to fiscal 2003, the Jaunch of the
Soma by Chico’s concept in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 and the Company’s revision to the manner in
which construction allowances received from landlords are presented. The impact of the construction
allowance change was to increase purchases of property and equipment by $13.1 million in fiscal 2004.

The Company invested $146.9 million, net, in marketable securities in the current year. In the prior year,
the Company invested $13.4 million in marketable securities. The substantially lower investment in net
marketable securities in fiscal 2003 was, for the most part, caused by the Company’s need to liquidate a
significant portion of its marketable securities in fiscal 2003 to fund the acquisition of The White House, Inc.

In August 2004, the Company also paid $1.3 million to acquire the net assets of a franchise store.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $16.4 million and $14.9 million in fiscal 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The Company received proceeds in both fiscal 2004 and 2003 from the issuance of common stock
related to current and former employee option exercises and employee participation in its employee stock
purchase plan. In fiscal 2004, the Company satisfied the remaining balances due on capital leases assumed as a
result of The White House, Inc. acquisition totaling $1.3 million.

In September 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the repurchase, over a twelve-month
period ending in September 2005, of up to $100 million of the Company’s outstanding common stock. The
Company repurchased 275,000 shares of its common stock during fiscal 2004 in connection with this stock
repurchase program, at a total cost of approximately $5.0 million.

During fiscal 2004, twenty-two of the Company’s thirty-three officers or former officers and three of its
five independent directors exercised an aggregate of 3,699,404 stock options at prices ranging from $0.38885 to
$15.275 and several employees and former employees exercised an aggregate of 349,998 options at prices
ranging from $0.1805 to $13.60. Also, during this period, the Company sold 95,110 and 16,916 shares of
common stock during the March and September offering periods under its employee stock purchase plan at
prices of $18.17 and $17.383, respectively. The proceeds from these issuances of stock, exclusive of the tax
benefit realized by the Company, amounted to approximately $22.7 million.

New Store Openings and Headquarters Expansion

The Company plans to open between 110 and 120 net new Company-owned stores (which includes
approximately 65-70 net new Chico’s stores, approximately 40-45 net new WH|BM stores and up to 6 new
Soma by Chico’s stores) in fiscal 2005. The Company believes that the liquidity needed for its planned new
store growth (including continued investments associated with the recent launch of its new concept, Soma by
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Chico’s}, continuing remodel/expansion program, continued installation and upgrading of new and existing
software packages, and maintenance of proper inventory levels associated with this growth will be funded
primarily from cash flow from operations and its existing strong cash and marketable securities balances.

The Company anticipates that its current headquarters facility will be insufficient to meet its needs by the
end of fiscal 2006. Accordingly, the Company is engaged in strategic long-term planning to address its space
requirements for the future. The Company’s options include expanding its current headquarters facility,
building a new headquarters at a different location, or moving into an existing building in a different location.
In order to help with immediate space needs, the Company has leased off-site space for its call center and will
likely lease additional off-site space to house discrete business units until its long-term solution is in place.

The Company further believes that this liquidity will be sufficient, based on the above, to fund anticipated
capital needs over the near-term. Given the Company’s existing cash and marketable securities balances and
the capacity included in its bank credit facilities, the Company does not believe that it would need to seek
other sources of financing to conduct its operations or pursue its expansion plans even if cash flow from
operations should prove to be less than anticipated or if there should arise a need for additional letter of credit
capacity due to establishing new and expanded sources of supply, or if the Company were to increase the
number of new Company-owned stores planned to be opened, expanded or relocated in future periods or
increase the size of any new or expanded headquarters facility from what is currently anticipated.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations at January 29, 2005 (amounts in
thousands):

Less than After

‘ Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt. ........... e $ — $ — 3 - — 5 —
Short-term borrowings ......... e — — — — —
Capital lease obligations ............. — — — — —
Operating leases .................... 327,684 56,204 105,303 83,062 83,115
Non-cancelable purchase commitments 4,786 4,786 — — —
Total ...... e $332,470  $60,990  $105,303  $83,062  $83,115

As of January 29, 2005, the Company’s contractual obligations consisted of amounts outstanding under
operating leases and non-cancelable purchase commitments. Amounts due under non-cancelable purchase
commitments consist of $4.8 million of letters of credit outstanding.

In September 2002, the Company entered into a replacement unsecured revolving credit facility with
Bank of America, N.A., expanding the maximum available commitment from $25 million to $45 million,
extending the maturity to June 2005 and increasing the letter of credit sublimit of the facility from $22 million
to $35 million. The Credit Facility provides for automatic renewal for successive one-year periods beginning
after June 2005, subject to the right of either party to terminate on each renewal date upon giving proper
notice. The Company intends to allow the Credit Facility to renew through June 2006 and also expects the
bank to allow the Credit Facility to renew through June 2006.

At January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, the Company did not have any relationship with
unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, of the type which certain other companies have established
for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or for other contractually narrow or limited
purposes. Therefore, the Company is not materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk
that could arise if the Company had engaged in such relationships.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon
the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the
Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to customer product returns, inventories, income
taxes, insurance reserves, contingencies and litigation. The Company bases its estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

The Company believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Inventory Valuation

The Company identifies potentially excess and slow-moving inventories by evaluating turn rates and
inventory levels in conjunction with the Company’s overall growth rate. Excess quantities are identified
through evaluation of inventory agings, review of inventory turns and historical sales experiences, as well as
specific identification based on fashion trends. Further, exposure to inadequate realization of carrying value is
identified through analysis of gross margins and markdowns in combination with changes in the fashion
industry. The Company provides lower of cost or market reserves for such identified excess and slow-moving
inventories.

Inventory Shrinkage

The Company estimates its expected shrinkage of inventories between physical inventory counts by
applying historical chain-wide average shrinkage experience rates to the related periods’ sales volume. The
historical rates are updated on a regular basis to reflect the most recent physical inventory shrinkage
experience. ‘

Sales Returns

The Company’s policy is to honor customer returns at all times. Returns after 30 days of the original
purchase, or returns without the original receipt, qualify for store credit only. The Company will, in certain
circumstances, offer full customer refunds either after 30 days or without a receipt. The Company estimates its
reserve for likely customer returns based on the average refund experience in relation to sales for the related
period.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of goodwill at least annually based on a two-step impairment
test. The first step compares the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit with its carrying amount, including
goodwill. If the carrying amount exceeds fair value, then the second step of the impairment test is performed
to measure the amount of any impairment loss. Fair value is determined based on estimated future cash flows,
discounted at a rate that approximates the Company’s cost of capital. The Company evaluates its other
intangible assets, specifically trademarks, for impairment on an annual basis by comparing the fair value of the
asset with its carrying value. Such estimates are subject to change and the Company may be required to
recognize impairment losses in the future.
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Self-Insurance

The Company. is self-insured for certain losses relating to workers’ compensation, medical and general
liability claims. Self-insurance claims filed and claims incurred but not reported are accrued based upon
management’s estimates ‘of the aggregate liability for uninsured claims incurred using insurance industry
benchmarks and historical experience. Although management believes it has the ability to adequately accrue
for estimated losses related to claims, it is possible that actual results could significantly differ from recorded
self-insurance liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
- Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004) (SFAS 123R), “Share-Based Payment,”
which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS 123).
SFAS 123R supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” Generally, the approach in
SFAS 123R is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees and directors, including grants of employee and director stock options, to be
recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative.

The provisions of SFAS 123R are effective at the beginning of the first interim or annual period beginning
after June 15, 2005. The Company expects to adopt SFAS 123R on July 31, 2005, the beginning of the
Company’s third fiscal quarter, using the modified-prospective method in which compensation cost is
recognized for (1) all share-based payments granted after July 31, 2005 and (2) all share-based payments
granted prior to July 31, 2005 that remain unvested as of such date.

As permitted by Statement 123, the Company currently accounts for share-based payments under
APB 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee or
director stock options. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS 123R’s fair value method will have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations as well as on the comparability of the results of operations for
the next several years, although it will have no impact on its overall financial position. The impact of the
adoption of SFAS 123R cannot reasonably be predicted at this time because it will depend on levels of share-
based payments granted in the future. However, had-the Company adopted SFAS 123R in prior periods, the
impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in the disclosure of
pro forma net income and earnings per share in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. SFAS 123R
also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a
financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required under current literature. This
requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after
adoption, again impacting the comparability of these financial measures for the next several years. Although
the Company cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future (because they depend on, among other
things, when employees and directors exercise stock options), the amount of operating cash flows recognized
in prior periods for such excess tax deductions were $27.3 million, $15.1 million and $22.6 million in fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Seasonality and Inflation

Although the operations of the Company are influenced by general economic conditions, the Company
does not believe that inflation has had a material effect on the results of operations during the current or prior
periods. The Company does not consider its business to be seasonal.

The Company reports its sales on a monthly basis in line with other public companies in the women’s
apparel industry. Although the Company believes this regular reporting of interim sales may provide for
greater transparency to investors, the Company is concerned that these interim results tend to be relied upon
too heavily as indicative of a trend. For example, such factors as the weather (numerous hurricanes in fiscal
2004), national events (elections), international events (9/11 and developments in Iraq), interest rates, and
similar factors can significantly affect the Company for a particular period. In addition, the Company’s
periodic results can be directly and significantly impacted by the extent to which the Company’s new
merchandise offerings are accepted by its customers.
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Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results

This Form 10-K may contain certain “forward-locking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
which reflect the current views of the Company with respect to certain events that could have an effect on the
Company’s future financial performance, including but without limitation, statements regarding future growth
rates of the established Company store concepts and the launch of the Soma by Chico’s concept. The
statements may address items such as future sales, gross profit expectations, planned store openings, closings
and expansions, future comparable store sales, future product sourcing plans, inventory levels, planned
marketing expenditures, planned capital expenditures and future cash needs. In addition, from time to time,
the Company may issue press releases and other written communications, and representatives of the Company
may make oral statements, which contain forward-looking information.

These statements, including those in this Form 10-K and those in press releases or made orally, may
include the words “expects,” “believes,” and similar expressions. Except for historical information, matters
discussed in such oral and written statements, including this Form 10-K, are forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from historical results or those currently anticipated. Factors that could cause or contribute
to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below and in the section entitled “Certain
Additional Business Risk Factors™ of the Company’s Form {0-K.

These potential risks and uncertainties include the financial strength of retailing in particular and the
economy in general, the extent of financial difficulties that may be experienced by customers, the ability of the
Company to secure and maintain customer acceptance of the Company’s styles and store concepts, the
propriety of inventory mix and sizing, the quality of merchandise received from vendors, the extent and nature
of competition in the markets in which the Company operates, the extent of the market demand and overall
level of spending for women’s private label clothing and related accessories, the adequacy and perception of
customer service, the ability to coordinate product development with buying and planning, the ability of the
Company’s suppliers to timely produce and deliver clothing and accessories, the changes in the costs of
manufacturing, labor and advertising, the rate of new store openings, the buying public’s acceptance of any of
the Company’s new store concepts, the performance, implementation and integration of management
information systems, the ability to hire, train, energize and retain qualified sales associates and other
employees, the availability of quality store sites, the ability to expand headquarters and support facilities in an
efficient and effective manner, the ability to hire and train qualified managerial employees, the ability to
effectively and efficiently establish and operate catalog and Internet sales, the ability to secure and protect
trademarks and other intellectual property rights, the ability to effectively and efficiently operate the WH|BM
and Soma by Chico’s divisions, risks associated with terrorist activities and other risks. In addition, there are
potential risks and uncertainties that are peculiar to the Company’s reliance on sourcing from foreign vendors,
including the impact of work stoppages, transportation delays and other interruptions, political or civil
instability, imposition of and changes in tariffs and import and export controls such as import quotas, changes
in governmental policies in or towards foreign countries, currency exchange rates and other similar factors.

The forward-looking statements included herein are only made as of the date of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The market risk of the Company’s financial instruments as of January 29, 2005 has not significantly
changed since January 31, 2004. The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on any
future indebtedness and its marketable securities. The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates in part
to its revolving line of credit with its bank; however, as of January 29, 2005, the Company did not have any
outstanding borrowings on its line of credit and, given its strong liquidity position, does not expect to utilize its
line of credit in the foreseeable future except for its continuing use of the letter of credit facility portion
thereof.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
_ CthOS FAS, Inc. ,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chico’s FAS, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 29, 2005. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those “standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,-the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Chico’s FAS, Inc. and subsidiaries at January 29, 2005 and January 31,
2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in
the period ended January 29, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Chico’s FAS, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
January 29, 20083, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 28, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As described in Note 1 during ﬁscal year 2003, the Company changed its method of accounting for
inventories. :

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tampa, Florida,
March 28, 2005
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ........ ... .. i e
Marketable securities, at market .. ... ... o

Receivables, less allowances for sales returns from franchisees of $325 and $288,
TESPECtIVELY L L\ e

InVeMtOrIES . . o
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ...
Deferred taxes ... ..ot

Total current assets . ... ..ot
Property and Equipment;

Land and land improvements . .. ... ... .. e
Building and building improvements . ........... .. . i
Equipment, furniture and fixtures. ........ ... . .
Leasehold ImMprovements .. ... ... e

Total property and equipment. . . ... ... i e
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . ............. ... ... ...

Property and equipment, NEt . . .. ... . .t e

Goodwill . .. e

Other Intangible Assets. .. ... ... ... . . . .

Other Assets, Net. ... ... .. i e e

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable . ... ... e e
Accrued Habilities ... .. . e
Current portion of deferred hiabilities. . ......... ... . .. . .

Total current liabilities . ... .. .. e

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Deferred Labilities ... ..o ot e
Deferred taXES ..o e

Total noncurrent labilities .. ... .. .
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value; 400,000 shares authorized and 178,961 and
175,074 shares issued and outstanding, respectively .. .........................

Additional paid-in capital . ... ... ... e
Retained earnings. ...t e
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income .............. ... vivrin..

Total stockholders’ equity .. ...t e

January 29, January 31,
2005 2004
$ 14,426 $ 15,676
251,199 104,453
5,106 6,368
73,223 54,896
9,429 8,655
11,184 7,525
364,567 197,573
6,055 5,976
29,286 25,014
140,360 100,589
166,096 99,806
341,797 231,385
(93,834)  (57,660)
247,963 173,725
61,796 60,114
34,042 34,043
7,361 5,399
$715,729 $470,854
$ 36,725 $ 27,796
58,258 43,187
332 599
95,315 71,582
47,149 12,713
12,397 11,724
59,546 24,437
1,790 1,751
147,652 97,710
411,556 275,339
(130) 35
560,868 374,835
$715,729 $470,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended
January 29, January 31,  February 1,

2005 2004 2003
Net sales by Chico’s/Soma stores .................coovio.. .. $ 889,429  $698,100  $508,492
Net sales by WH|BM StOT€S . .........vivriiiiniiannnneann ., 142,092 39,818 —
Net sales by catalog and Internet.............................. 26,831 22,780 16,070
Net sales to franchisees .. ... e 8,530 7,801 6,546
Netsales ............... .. ... ... P 1,066,882 768,499 531,108
Costof goods sold ......... . ... oo, 411,908 297,477 209,770
Grossprofit.............................. T 654,974 471,022 321,338
General, administrative and store operating expenses ............. 398,117 289,118 199,495
Depreciation and amortization .. .............. ... .. ..., 32,481 21,130 15,050
Income from operations. . ................................ 224,376 160,774 106,793
Interest inCOME, MEt .. ...ttt e 2,327 888 883
Income before income taxes . ........... ... ... .226,703 161,662 107,676
Income tax provision .............c..uiiiiiitriaeeiia 85,497 61,432 40,917
INEt IICOME . . . . i i i it e e e n $ 141,206  $100,230  § 66,759
PER SHARE DATA:
Net income per common share — basic .............. e $ 079 $ 058 § 040
Net income per common and common equivalent share — diluted $ 078 $ 057 $ 039
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic.......... 178,256 172,805 166,618
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding — diluted. . ....... ... ... ... . 180,149 176,284 172,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

(In thousands)

Common Stock Additional
Par Paid-in Retained

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Shares Value Capital Earnings  (Loss) Income Total
BALANCE, February 2,2002........... 163,162 $1,632 § 33,411 $108,350 § 102 $143495
Netincome ... —_ — — 66,759 — 66,759
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net — — — — &3 83
Comprehensive income .............. 66,842
Issuance of common stock................ 7,402 74 7,173 — —_ 7,247
Tax benefit of stock options exercised ... ... — — 22,549 — —_— 22,549
BALANCE, February 1,2003........... 170,564 1,706 63,133 175,109 185 240,133
Netincome ..., — — — 100,230 — 100,230
Unrealized loss on marketable securities, net — —_ — — (150) (150)
Comprehensive income .............. 100,080
Issuance of common stock................ 4,510 45 19,451 _— — 19,496
Tax benefit of stock options exercised ... ... — —_ 15,126 — — 15,126
BALANCE, January 31,2004, ....... ... 175,074 1,751 97,710 275,339 35 374,835
Net INCOMmMe .. oo v e e — —_ — 141,206 — 141,206
Unrealized loss on marketable securities, net —_— — — — (165) (165)
Comprehensive income .............. 141,041
Issuance of common stock................ 4,162 42 22,645 _ — 22,687
Repurchase of common stock ............. (275) (3 — (4,989) —_ (4,992)
Tax benefit of stock options exercised ... ... — — 27,297 — — 27,297
BALANCE, January 29,2005........... 178,961 $1,790 $147,652 $411,556 $ (130) $560,868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Nt INCOME . . e e e e e e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities —
Depreciation and amortization, cost of goods sold .............
Depreciation. and amortization, other ........................
Deferred tax (benefit) expense ......... ...
Tax benefit of stock options exercised .......................
Deferred rent expense, net ... ... i
Loss on impairment and disposal of property and equipment . . ..

Decrease (increase) in assets, net of effects of acquisition —
Receivables, net. .. ... . e
INVEntories . . ..o e e
Prepaid expenses and other ........ ... ... . ... ... ..

Increase {decrease) in liabilities, net of effects of acquisition —
Accounts payable ....... ... . ...
Accrued and other deferred labilities. ............ ... ... ...,

Total adjustments . ... o
Net cash provided by operating activities. ... ...............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of marketable securities .. .......... ... .. .. ... ... ...
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities ....................
Acquisition of The White House, Inc., net of cash acquired. ... ...
Acquisition of franchise store ........ ... .. i,
Purchases of property and equipment.................. ... ...

Net cash used in investing activities.......................

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock .......... ... ... ...,
Repurchase of common stock ......... ... ... i
Payments on capital leases. . ........ . ... ... i
Principal paymentsondebt ........ ... ... . .. i
Deferred finance Costs ... .. . o i

Net cash provided by financing activities. ..................

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ........
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period.........

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of peried..............

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest ... .. e
Cash paid for income taxes, net ........... i

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Common stock issued in acquisition. ............ .. ...

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,
2005

Janvary 31,  February 1,

2004

2003

$ 141,206 §$ 100,230 $ 66,759

3,605 1,970 1,093
32,481 21,130 15,050
(2,986) 1,336 (1,651)
27,297 15,126 22,549
6,450 1,874 1,482
311 3,746 1,315
1,069 (1,953) (143)
(18,280)  (4,658)  (16,002)
(2,734)  (1,281)  (1,691)
8,929 (3,175) 9,000
26,272 11,035 11,046
82,414 45150 42,048
223,620 145380 108,807
(404,211)  (166,855) (134,918)
257,299 153,447 84,235
—  (87,636) —
(1,307) — —
(93,065)  (52,300)  (64,742)
(241,284)  (153,344) (115425)
22,684 15,231 7,247
(4,992) — —
(1,278) (344) —
— — (5,155)

— — (98)
16,414 14,887 1,994
(1,250) 6,923 (4,624)
15,676 8,753 13,377

$ 14426 $ 15676 $ 8753
$ 107 S 142§ 285
$ S6480 § 47,855 § 19,200
$ — $ 4266 $§ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
January 29, 2005
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts and where otherwise indicated)

1. Business Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:
Business Organization

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Chico’s FAS, Inc., a Florida
corporation, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company operates as a specialty retailer of private label
casual clothing, intimates and related accessories. The Company sells its products through traditional retail
stores, catalog, a small franchise network and via the Internet at www.chicos.com. As of January 29, 2005, the
Company’s retail store system consisted of 657 stores located throughout the United States, the U.S. Virgin
Islands and Puerto Rico, 645 of which are owned and operated by the Company, and 12 of which are owned
and operated by franchisees.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal years end on the Saturday closest to January 31 and are designated by the calendar
year in which the fiscal year commences. The periods presented in these financial statements are the fiscal
years ended January 29, 2005 (fiscal 2004), January 31, 2004 (fiscal 2003) and February 1, 2003 (fiscal
2002). Fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 each contained 52 weeks. '

Franchise Operations

A summary of the changes in the number of the Company’s franchise stores as compared to total
Company-owned stores as of the end of fiscal 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal

2004 2003
Franchise stores opened ........ ... .. i 1 0
Franchise stores repurchased ....... ... . . i L 1 0
Franchise stores in operation at fiscal year-end ............ E 12 12
Company-owned stores at fiscal year-end . ......... ... ... ..., RPN 645 545

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Segment Information

The Company’s brands, Chico’s, WH|BM and Soma by Chico’s, have been aggregated into one
reportable segment due to the similarities of the economic and operating characteristics of the operations
represented by the Company’s brands.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued}

from those estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions made by management primarily impact the
following key financial areas:

Inventory Valuation

The Company identifies potentially excess and slow-moving inventories by evaluating turn rates and
inventory levels in conjunction with the Company’s overall growth rate. Excess quantities are identified
through evaluation of inventory agings, review of inventory turns and historical sales experiences, as well
as specific identification based on fashion trends. Further, exposure to inadequate realization of carrying
value is identified through analysis of gross margins and markdowns in combination with changes in the
fashion industry. The Company provides lower of cost or market reserves for such identified excess and
slow-moving inventories.

Inventory Shrinkage

The Company estimates its expected shrinkage of inventories between physical inventory counts by
applying historical chain-wide average shrinkage experience rates to the related periods’ sales volume.
The historical rates are updated on a regular basis to reflect the most recent physical inventory shrinkage
experience.

Sales Returns

The Company’s policy is to honor customer returns at all times. Returns after 30 days of the original
purchase, or returns without the original receipt, qualify for store credit only. The Company will, in
certain circumstances, offer full customer refunds either after 30 days or without a receipt. The Company
estimates its reserve for likely customer returns based on the average refund experience in relation to sales
for the related period.

Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured for certain losses relating to workers’ compensation, medical and
general liability claims. Self-insurance claims filed and claims incurred but not reported are accrued
based upon management’s estimates of the aggregate liability for uninsured claims incurred using
insurance industry-benchmarks and historical experience. Although management believes it has the
ability to adequately accrue for estimated losses related to claims, it is possible that actual results could
significantly differ from recorded sclf-insurance liabilities.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications of certain prior-year balances were made in order to conform the current-year
presentation.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks and short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.
Marketable Securities

Marketable securities generally represent variable rate demand notes and auction rate securities, which
are highly liquid, variable rate municipal debt securities. Although these securities have long-term nominal
maturity dates ranging from 2009 to 2042, the interest rates are reset, depending on the type of security,
every 7, 28 or 35 days. Despite the long-term nature of the underlying securities, the Company has the ability
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

to quickly liquidate these securities based on the Company’s cash needs thereby creating a short-term
instrument.

Marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at market value, with the
unrealized holding gains and losses, net of income taxes, reflected as a separate component of stockholders’
equity until realized. For the purposes of computing realized and unrealized gains and losses, cost is
determined on a specific identification basis.

Inventories

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company changed its method of determining the cost of certain
merchandise inventories from the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method to the weighted average cost method.
Management believes that the weighted average cost method better measures the cost of such inventories,
results in a better matching of revenues and expenses and more accurately reflects the Company’s financial
position. The effect of this change was immaterial to the financial results of prior reporting periods of the
Company and, therefore, did not require retroactive restatement of results for those prior periods.

Purchasing, merchandising, distribution and product development costs are expensed as incurred, and are
included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income as a component of cost of goods sold.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over
the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related lease term plus one anticipated renewal when there is
an economic penalty associated with non-renewal, not to exceed 10 years. The Company’s property and
equipment is depreciated using the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated Useful Lives

Land and land improvements . ...................... 35 years

Building and building improvements ................. 20 - 35 years

Equipment, furniture and fixtures ................... 2 - 10 years

Leasehold improvements. ... ....................... 3 - 10 years or term of lease, if shorter

Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are expensed as incurred, and major improvements
are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and
accumulated depreciation or amortization are ¢liminated from the accounts, and any gain or loss is charged to
operations.

Operating Leases

The Company leases retail stores and office space under operating leases. The majority of the Company’s
lease agreements provide for tenant improvement allowances, rent escalation clauses and/or contingent rent
provisions. In fiscal 2004, the Company conformed its accounting for operating leases and leasehold
improvements to SFAS 13 and its related interpretations as clarified by the Office of the Chief Accountant of
the Securities and Exchange Commission to the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants on
February 7, 2005.

Tenant improvement allowances are recorded as a deferred lease credit within deferred liabilities and
amortized as a reduction of rent expense over the term of the lease, which includes the construction period and
one renewal when there is a significant economic penalty associated with non-renewal.

51




CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Centinued)

In periods prior to fiscal 2004, the Company’s consolidated balance sheets reflect the unamortized portion
of tenant improvement allowances as a reduction of property and equipment and consolidated statements of
cash flows reflect tenant improvement allowances as a reduction of capital expenditures within investing
activities. In addition, for fiscal 2004 and future years, these allowances are amortized as a reduction of rent
expense and shown as an operating activity on the consolidated statement of cash flows, rather than amortized
as a reduction of depreciation expense, as in prior fiscal years. Since the impact of this change in accounting
was not material to any previously reported fiscal year, the cumulative effect was recorded in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2004.

In addition to the above, the Company recorded a one-time, non-cash charge in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2004 to reflect the impact of recording rent expense prior to store opening (during the construction
period). Previously, the Company followed a practice prevalent across the retailing industry, in which it
recognized the rent expense for leases beginning on the earlier of the store opening date or lease
commencement date. As a result of this change, landlord incentives, ‘‘rent-free” periods, rent escalation
clauses and minimum rental expenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases, which
now includes the construction period, which is generally 45-60 days prior to the store opening date when the
Company generally begins improvements in preparation of intended use. The charge resulted in a one-time,
cumulative, non-cash adjustment to rent expense of approximately $4.1 million pre-tax in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2004, since the impact of the change was not material to any previously reported fiscal year.

Certain leases provide for contingent rents, which are determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess
of specified levels. The Company records a contingent rent liability in “Accrued liabilities” on the consolidated
balance sheets and the corresponding rent expense wken specified levels have been achieved or when
management determines that achieving the specified levels during the fiscal year is probable.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company adopted the provisions of Statement o Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142), as of February 3, 2002. Goodwill and intangible assets
acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not
amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 142. During fiscal 2003 in connection with the acquisition of WH |BM, the Company recorded goodwill
and a trademark intangible asset.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable tangible and
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a busiress combination. In accordance with the provisions
of SFAS 142, the Company is not amortizing the goodwill. Impairment testing for goodwill is done at a
reporting unit level. Under SFAS 142, reporting units are defined as an operating segment or one level below
an operating segment, called a component. Using these criteria, the Company identified its reporting units and
further concluded that the goodwill related to the WH|BM acquisition should be assigned to the WH |BM
reporting unit. The Company was then required to determine the fair value of the WH |BM reporting unit and
compare it to its carrying value. To accomplish this, the Company determined the carrying value of the
WH | BM reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible
asset to it. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company performed the test as described above, in
connection with its annual impairment test required under SIFAS 142 and the implied fair value of the WH|BM
reporting unit exceeded its respective carrying amount. Therefore, the Company was not required to recognize
an impairment loss. ‘

The value of the trademark intangible asset was determined using a discounted cash flow method, based
on the estimated future benefit to be received from the trademark. The Company is not amortizing the
trademark intangible asset, as the trademark has an indefirite useful life. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,
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the Company performed an analysis to compare the implied fair value of the trademark asset, using a
discounted cash flow method, to its carrying value and concluded that the trademark asset was not impaired.

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill for fiscal 2004 is as follows:

Balance as of January 31, 2004 . ... ... $60,114
Purchase price adjustment, The White House, Inc. ........ .. ... ... ............ 256
Acquisition of franchise store ........... ... .. 1,426
Balance as of January 29, 2005 . .. ... $61,796

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed periodically for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset are less than its carrying amount, an asset is determined to be impaired, and a loss is recorded for
the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value.

Income Taxes

The Company follows the liability method, which establishes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
temporary differences between the financial reporting bases and the tax bases of the Company’s assets and
liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled. Net deferred
tax assets, whose realization is dependent on taxable earnings of future years, are recognized when a greater
than 50 percent probability exists that the tax benefits will be realized sometime in the future.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, short-
term trade receivables and payables. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities,
trade receivables and trade payables equal current fair value.

Revenue Recognition

Retail sales by Company stores are recorded at the point of sale and are net of estimated customer
returns, sales discounts under the “Passport Club” and “The Black Book™ loyalty programs and Company
issued coupons. Retail sales by catalog and Internet are recorded when shipments are made to catalog and
Internet customers and are net of estimated customer returns. Net sales to franchisees are recorded when
merchandise is shipped to franchisees and are net of estimated returns. Revenue for gift certificate and gift
card sales is recognized at redemption.

Vendor Allowances
From time to time, the Company receives allowances and/or credits from certain of its vendors. The
aggregate amount of such allowances and credits is immaterial to the Company’s results of operations.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs to either transport goods between stores or directly to customers, net of
amounts paid to the Company by customers to cover these costs, which amounted to $4.8 million,
$4.1 million, and $3.1 million in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, do not represent a significant portion
of the Company’s operations and are included in general, administrative and store operating expenses.
Amounts paid by customers to cover shipping and handling costs are considered insignificant.
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Store Pre-opening Costs

Operating costs (including store set-up, rent and training expenses) incurred prior to the opening of new
stores are expensed as incurred and are included in general, administrative and store operating expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Advertising Costs

Costs associated with advertising are charged to expense as incurred except for catalogs, which are
amortized over the life of the catalog (typically less than six weeks). For fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
advertising costs of approximately $40.0 million, $27.3 million, and $18.8 million, respectively, are included in
general, administrative and store operating expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
Transition and Disclosure” (SFAS 148). SFAS 148 amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (SFAS 123), to provide alternative methods of transition to the fair value method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In acldition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure provisions
of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported
results. SFAS 148 does not amend SFAS 123 to require companies to account for their employee stock-based
awards using the fair value method. However, the disclosure provisions are required for all companies with
stock-based employee compensation, regardless of whether they utilize the fair value method of accounting
described in SFAS 123 or the intrinsic value method described in Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25).

The Company uses the intrinsic value method for valuing its awards of stock options and recording the
related compensation expense, if any, in accordance with APB 25. No stock-based employee or director
compensation cost for stock options is reflected in net income for fiscal 2004, 2003 or 2002 as all options
granted during the periods have exercise prices equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on
the date of grant. The following table illustr‘ates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the
Company had applied the fair value: rccognmon provisions of SFAS 123 to all stock-based employee
compensation,

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
’ ! 2004 2003 2002
Net income, as reported. s .;. e e $141,206  $100,230  $66,759
Deduct: Total stock-based employec compensation expense
determined under fair valuc, based methods for all awards,
netof taxes ............. ‘ ............................ 9,340 9,359 8,696
Net income, pro forma...... b $131,866 $ 90,871  $58,063
|
Net income per common sharti::
Basic - as reported. . . ... .. bt e e e .. $ 079 $ 058 $ 040
Basic - pro forma......... e $ 074 $§ 053 $ 035
Diluted - as reported . . . ... e $ 078 $§ 057 $ 039
Diluted = pro forma . . ... oo b oot $ 073 $§ 052 § 033

For pro forma disclosure purpoeses, the fair value of each optidn granted has been estimated as of the
grant date using the Black-Scholesoption pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:
risk-free interest rate of 3.3, 3.6, and!4.8 percent for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 respectively, an expected life of

A
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five years for grants made in fiscal 2004 and an expected life of seven years for fiscal 2003 and 2002 grants, no
expected dividends, and expected volatility of 60, 65, and 68 percent for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The weighted average fair value of options granted during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $10.21,
$7.68, and $5.82, respectively. Options granted under the 1992 Stock Option Plan, the 1993 Stock Option Plan
and the 2002 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (excluding the non-employee director portion thereof)
generally vest ratably over three years. The non-employee director option grants under the 2002 Omnibus
Stock and Incentive Plan generally vest after six months. The term of all options granted is 10 years.

Common Stock Splits

During fiscal 2002, the Board declared a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s common stock, payable
in the form of a stock dividend on July 29, 2002, to sharcholders of record as of the close of business on
July 15, 2002. Also, see Note 11 for additional information concerning a two-for-one stock split which was
effectuated subsequent to fiscal 2004. All historical weighted average share and per share amounts and all
references to the number of common shares elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto have been restated to reflect both the July 2002 stock split and the stock split effectuated subsequent
to fiscal 2004 (the “Stock Splits”). Par value remained unchanged at $0.01 after each of the Stock Splits.

Net Income Per Common and Common Equivalent Share

SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” (SFAS 128), requires companies with complex capital structures
that have publicly held common stock or common stock equivalents to present both basic and diluted earnings
per share (EPS) on the face of the income statement. As provided by SFAS 128, basic EPS is based on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding and diluted EPS is based on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding plus the dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the
period.

The following is a reconciliation of the denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations shown
on the face of the accompanying consolidated statements of income as restated for the Stock Splits:

Fiscal Fiscal _ Fiscal

2004 2003 2002
Weighted average common shares outstanding — '
DaSIC. . 178,256,214 172,805,064 166,617,658
Dilutive effect of stock options outstanding ........ 1,893,010 3,478,744 5,446,446
Weighted average common and common equivalent
shares outstanding — diluted .................. 180,149,224 176,283,808 172,064,104

The following options were outstanding as of ‘the end of the fiscal years but were not included in the
computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of
the common shares:

Fiscal Fiscai Fiscal

2004 2003 2002
Number of options ......... 215,800 624,000 1,047,600
Exercise price ............. $21.65-$25.85 $15.28 - $19.25 $9.15 - $10.71
Expiration date ............ March 3, 2014~ September 5, 2013 - June 25, 2012 -

January 17, 2015 January 26, 2014 December 16, 2012
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Newly Issued Accounting Pronqunc_éments

On December 16,2004, the{ FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) (SFAS 123R), “Share-Based
Payment,” which is a revision of SFAS 123, “Accourting for Stock-Based Compensation”. SFAS 123R
supersedes APB 25 and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” Generally, the approach in
SFAS 123R is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees  and drrectors including grants of employee and director stock options, to be
recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative.

The provisions of SFAS 123R are effective at the beginning of the first interim or annual period beginning
after June 15, 2005. The Company expects to adopt SFAS 123R on July 31, 2005, the beginning of the
Company’s third- fiscal quarter, ‘ using the modified-prospective method in which compensation cost is
recognized for (1) all share-based payments granted after July 31, 2005 and (2) all share-based payments
granted prior to July 31, 2005 that remain unvested as of such date.

As permitted by Statement 123, the Company currently accounts for share-based payments under
APB 25’s intrinsic value method! and, as such, generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee or
director stock options. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS 123R’s fair value method will have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations as well as on the comparability of the results of operations for
the next several years, although it will have no impact on its overall financial position. The impact of the
adoption of SFAS 123R cannot reasonably be predicted at this time because it will depend on levels of share-
based payments granted in the future.. However, had the Company adopted SFAS 123R in prior periods, the
1mpact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123 as described in the disclosure of
pro forma net income and earnlngs per share in Note 1 tc the consolidated financial statements. SFAS 123R
also requires the benefits of tax deductrons in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a
financing cash flow, rather than\ as an operating cash flow as required under current literature. This
requirement will reduce ‘net operatrng cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after
adoption, again impacting the comparablhty of these ﬁnancral measures for the next several years. Although
the Company cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future {(because they depend on, among other
things, when employees and dlrectors exercise stock options), the amount of operating cash flows recognized
in prior periods for such excess tax deductions were $27.3 million, $15.1 million and $22.6 million in fiscal
2004; 2003 and 2002, respectlvely

| ‘
2, The White House, Inc Acqulhltlon

| ‘
On September 5,-2003, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of The White House,

Inc. (The White House) for approximately $93.2 million; consisting of approximately $88.9 million in cash
(including acquisition costs of $3.0, million) and approximately $4.3 million in the Company’s common stock
represented by the issuance of approximately 301,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, as adjusted for
the 2-for-1 stock split effectuated on February 22, 2005. The Company funded the cash portion of the
purchase price from current cash balances and from the sale of certain marketable securities. As a result of the
transaction, The Whlte House became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

As of September 5 2003 The Whrte House operated 107 stores in 30 states, the U.S. Virgin Islands,
Puerto Rico and the District of- Columbla that sell high-quality fashion and basic merchandise assorted
primarily in white and black and related shades. As a result of the acquisition, the Company believes that it
can strengthen its position in the| spec1a1ty retail market and continue its overall growth strategy. The
transaction was accounted for under the purchase methcd of accounting and, accordingly, the results of
operations of The White House have been consolidated in the Company’s financial statements since the date
of acquisition.
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The total purchase consideration has been allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired, including an
identifiable intangible asset (trademark), based on their respective estimated fair values as summarized below.
The allocation of the purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired resulted in excess purchase
consideration over the net assets and identifiable intangible asset acquired of $60.1 million and this excess has
been assigned to goodwill. Such goodwill and the amounts allocated to the intangible asset are not expected to
be deductible for tax purposes. A summary of the original allocation of the purchase price follows:

CaSh . o $§ 1,280
Accounts receIvable . ... . e 2,189
Ve OIS . . o e e 5,330
Other current @ssets ...t iiieernnn.. P 2,552
Property, plant and equipment . ... . 9,335
Intangible asset not subject to amortization — Trademark ........................ 34,000
GoodWill . . .o e e 60,114

Total assets acquired. .. ... i 114,800
Current Habilities .. ... o e 9,103
Noncurrent Habilities . ... ... e 1,221
Net deferred tax lability . ... .ot 11,295

Total liabilities assumed . .. ... v 21,619

Net assets aCqUired . .. ... ottt e e e $ 93,181

The following table presents unaudited pro forma results of operations for the fiscal years ended
January 31, 2004 and February 1, 2003 as if the acquisition of The White House had occurred on February 2,
2003 and February 3, 2002, respectively. The unaudited pro forma information presented below is for
illustrative purposes only and is not indicative of results that would have been achieved or results which may
be achieved in the future:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002

Net 8818 ot $817,474 $598,064

Nt IICOME . oot e e e e 101,021(1) 70,060
Net income per common share(2):

Basic................. P $ 0.8 $ 042

Diluted . ..o $ 057 $ 041

(1) Includes approximately $2.7 million (pre-tax) of nonrecurring charges related to the acquisition recorded
by The White House in its historical results prior to September 5, 2003.

(2) Adjusted for 2-for-1 stock split effectuated on February 22, 2003,

3. Property and Equipment Impairment:

During fiscal 2003, the Company decided to conclude the Pazo concept test and initiated the
closing/conversion process for the 10 Pazo stores, which was completed in fiscal 2004. In connection with this
decision, the Company completed an impairment review of Pazo’s property and equipment. Upon completion
of the review, the Company determined that the carrying value of certain Pazo assets exceeded their future
undiscounted cash flows. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $2.9 million during
fiscal 2003. The provision for the asset impairment is included in general, administrative and store operating
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
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4. Marketable Securities:

B e A

The following tables summarize the Company’s investments in marketable securities at January 29, 2005
and January 31, 2004:

January 29, 2005

1

\

i Gross Gross

| Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

\ Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Total marketable secunhes{ ................... $251,329 § — § (130) $251,199

} January 31, 2004

1 Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
ﬁ Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Total marketable securities

................... $104418 $ 49 $§  (14) $104453

The following tables show\the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company’s marketable
securities with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired aggregated by the

length of time that individual securmes have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at January 29, 2005
and January 31, 2004, respectlvegly

January 29, 2005

(

I! Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total

! Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
| Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Total rharketable 'securities.( $60,368 § (111) $4485 §  (19) $64,853 $ (130)

January 31, 2004

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
Total marketable securities.. $23,597 § (14) § — § —  $23597 $§ (14)
g

The unrealized losses presented above are primarily due to changes in market interest rates. The
Company has the intent and ablhty to hold these securities for a reasonable period of time sufficient for a

forecasted recovery of fair value uﬂ to (or beyond) the initial cost of the investment. The Company expects to
realize the full value of all of these investments upon marurity.

s

5. Accrued Liabilities: ;
Accrued liabilities c0n51sted of the following:
} Jamzn&% 29, Jamz;oaa 31,
Allowance for estimated cust&mer returns, gift certificates and store

credits outstanding .. ... .. ‘ ..................................... $28,380 $18,009
Accrued payroll, bonuses and severance costs ...l 13,872 11,003

Other ... SR L FUUTIRRR 16006 14,175

$58,258 $43,187
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6. Income Taxes:

The Company’s income tax provision consisted of the following:
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002

Current:
Federal ... oot $77,987 $52,798 $37,399
NS 1 £ 10,496 7,298 5,169
Deferred:
Federal ...... ... . . . . . (2,526) 407 (1,451)
SAE . (460) 929 (200)
Total income tax provision......................... $85,497 $61,432 $40,917

The reconciliation of the income tax provision based on the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate
(35 percent) to the Company’s income tax provision is as follows:

Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002

Tax expense at the statutory rate ....................... $79,346 $56,582 $37,687
State income tax expense, net of federal tax benefit........ 6,151 4,850 3,230
Total income tax provision..............covivvenenn.. $85,497 $61,432 $40,917

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded due to different carrying amounts for financial and income
tax reporting purposes arising from cumulative temporary differences. These differences consist of the
following as of January 29, 2005, and January 31, 2004:

January 29, January 31,

2005 2004

Current:

Accrued liabilities and allowances ......... ... .. ... . ... . . .. $ 9,396 $ 6,264

| 18053 1L o)y (=1 1,788 1,261

$ 11,184 § 7,525

Noncurrent:

Other intangible a8SetS. .. ..o v i e $(13,170) $(13,153)

Depreciation ... ... (7,124) (3,139)

Lease obligations ...... ... .t 5,004 2,548

Deferred compensation . ...........ouiuiuiinieeiieeennnnns 2,893 2,020

$(12,397)  $(11,724)

Deferred tax assets at January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 totaled $19.1 million and $12.1 million,
respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 totaled $20.3 million and
$16.3 million, respectively.
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7. Deferred Liabilities:

i
Deferred liabilities consisted of the following:

January 29, January 31,
2005 2004

Deferred rent .......... o P $13,168  § 6,718
Deferred compensation . ...j......... vttt 7,614 5,316
Deferred lease credits . ... ... .. i 26,699 —
Capital lease obligations .. .j........ i — 1,278
Total deferred liabilities. .| .. ... oo i 47,481 13,312
Less current portion . ... ... i (332) {599)

|
11 : $47,149 $12,713

\

The Company has an unsccurcd revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility) with Bank of America,
N.A., consisting of a total avallablle commitment of $45 million, composed of a line of credit of $10 million
(the Line) and a $35 million letter of credit sublimit. All borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at
the LIBOR rate, plus an additionaﬂ amount ranging from 0.80 percent to 2.90 percent adjusted quarterly based
on the Company’s performance pef,r annum {a combined 3.4 percent at January 29, 2005). The Company is
also required to pay, quarterly in arrears, a commitment fie of 0.10 percent per annum on the average daily
unused portion of the Line. There are no compensating balance requirements associated with the Credit
Facility. No borrowings are outstallilding as of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004.

The Credit Facility contains certain restrictions regarding additional indebtedness, business operations,
liens, guaranties, transfers and saleé of assets, and transactions with subsidiaries or affiliates. In addition, the
Company must comply with ccrtaijn quarterly restrictions (based on a rolling four-quarters basis) regarding
net worth, leverage ratio, fixed charge coverage and current ratio requirements. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants at January 29, 2005. The Credit Facility provides for automatic renewal for
successive one-year periods beginnirl;lg after June 2003, subject to the right of either party to terminate on each
renewal date upon giving proper noZtice. The Company intends to allow the Credit Facility to renew through
June 2006 and also expects the bank to allow the Credit Facility to renew through June 2006.

Deferred rent represents the diﬁercnce between operating lease obligations currently due and operating
lease expense, which is recorded by, the Company on a straight-line basis over the terms of its leases.
i

|
Deferred compensation represents the deferred compensation liability payable to participants of the
Chico’s FAS, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (the Deferred Plan). See Note 10.
§

Deferred lease credits repre:sen€1 construction allowances received from landlords and are amortized as a
reduction of rent expense over the appropriate respective terms of the related leases.
!

8. Commitments and Contingenciés:

The Company leases retail stor%: space and various office equipment under operating leases expiring in
various years through the fiscal year ending 2016. Certain of the leases provide that the Company may cancel
the lease if the Company’s retail sales at that location fall below an established level, and certain leases provide
for additional rent payments to be made when sales exceed a base amount. Certain operating leases provide for
renewal options for periods from three to five years at their fair rental value at the time of renewal. In the
normal course of business, operatingileases are generally rerewed or replaced by other leases.
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Minimum future rental payments under noncancellable operating leases (including leases with certain

minimum sales cancellation clauses described below and exclusive of common area maintenance charges
and/or contingent rental payments based on sales) as of January 29, 2005, are approximately as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending:

January 28, 2006 . . ... .o $ 56,204
FEBIUary 3, 2007 . . ..o e e e e 54,713
February 2, 2008 . ... .o 50,590
January 31, 2000 . .. o 44,962
January 30, 20010 . . .. 38,100
B 1) (=71 5 =) U 83,115

Total minimum lease PAYMENTS. . ...\ v ettt et $327,684

A majority of the Company’s new store operating leases contain cancellation clauses that allow the leases
to be terminated at the Company’s discretion, if certain minimum sales levels are not met within the first few
years of the lease term. The Company has not historically exercised many of these cancellation clauses and,
therefore, has included commitments for the full lease terms of such leases in the above table, For fiscal 2004,
2003 and 2002, total rent expense under the Company’s operating leases was approximately $77.7 million,
$59.3 million, and $42.2 million, respectively, including common area maintenance charges of approximately
$9.5 million, $6.6 million, and $5.2 million, respectively, other rental charges of approximately $8.4 million,
$7.1 million, and $35.0 million, respectively, and contingent rental expense of approximately $8.4 million,
$5.7 million, and $4.0 million, respectively, based on sales.

At January 29, 2005, the Company has approximately $4.8 million in commercial letters of credit
outstanding (see Note 7), which arose in the normal course of business due to foreign purchase commitments.

The Company was named as defendant in a putative class action suit filed in May 2003 in the Superior
Court for the State of California, County of San Francisco, Charissa Villanueva v. Chico’s FAS, Inc. The
Company filed an answer denying the material allegations of the Complaint. The Complaint alleges that the
Company, in violation of California law, has in place a mandatory uniform policy that requires its employees
to purchase and wear Chico’s clothing and accessories as a condition of employment. It is the Company’s
position that no such mandatory uniform policy exists. Although the Company believed it had strong defenses
to the allegations in this case, the Company agreed to participate in a voluntary private mediation on
November 10, 2004. A settlement was reached at the mediation, and the parties are in the process of preparing
and finalizing the settlement documents. The settlement must be approved by the Court at both a preliminary
and a final approval hearing before it becomes final. The Company does not believe the total settlement costs
will have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

The Company was named as the defendant in a suit filed in July 2004 in the Circuit Court of Lee County,
Florida, Ajit Patel v. Chico’s FAS, Inc. The Complaint alleges that the Company breached an implied contract
with the plaintiff, the Company’s former Vice President-Chief Information Officer, and, alternatively, that the
Company fraudulently induced the plaintiff to work for the Company. It is the Company’s position that no
contract, express or implied, existed between the Company and the plaintiff and that the Company did not
engage in any fraudulent conduct. The Company has filed an answer denying the material allegations of the
Complaint and the parties are now engaged in the discovery process. No trial date has been set. The Company
believes the case is without merit and will continue to vigorously defend the litigation.

The Company is not a party to any other legal proceedings, other than various claims and lawsuits arising
in the normal course of business, none of which the Company believes should have a material adverse effect
on its financial condition or results of operations.
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i
9. Stock Option Plans and Cafpita[ Stock Transactior:s:

1992 Stock Option Plan

|

During fiscal year 1992, the ]E?:oard approved a stock option plan (the 1992 Plan) for eligible employees of
the Company. The per share exercise price of each stock: option is not less than the fair market value of the
stock on the date of grant or, in the case of an employee owning more than 10 percent of the outstanding stock
of the Company and to the extentlmcennve stock options, as opposed to nonqualified stock options, are issued,
the price is not less than 110 percent of such fair market value. Also, the aggregate fair market value of the
stock with respect to which incentive stock options are exercisable for the first time by an employee in any
calendar year may not exceed $1500,000. Options granted under the terms of the 1992 Plan generally vest
evenly over three years and have a 10-year term. As of January 29, 2005, approximately 2,100 nonqualified
options remain outstanding under‘the 1992 Plan.
1993 Stock Option Plan |

During fiscal year 1993, the Board approved a stock option plan, as amended in fiscal 1999 (the 1993
Plan) for eligible employees of theiCompany The terms of the 1993 Plan are essentially the same as the 1992
Plan. As of January 29, 2005, approx1mately 1,528,000 ronqualified options remain outstanding under the
1993 Plan. ,

|
Independent Directors’ Plan ‘\

In October 1998, the Board a}%proved a stock option plan (the Independent Directors’ Plan) for eligible
independent directors of the Company. Options granted under the terms of the Independent Directors’ Plan
vest after six months and have a 10 -year term. From the date of the adoption of the Independent Directors’
Plan and until the 2002 Cmnibus Stock and Incentive Plan was adopted, 507,500 options were granted under
the Independent Directors’ Plan, Subsequent to the adoption of the Independent Directors’ Plan, three
independent directors of the Comdany were granted 180,000 nonqualified stock options through individual
grants at exercise prices of $2.15 per share. As of January 29, 2005, approximately 300,000 of these individual
grant nonqualified options and optiéns under the Independent Directors’ Plan remain outstanding.

i
|

Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan:'

As of January 31, 2004, the Chlco s FAS, Inc. 2002 Cmnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (the Omnibus
Plan) had 9,490,828 shares of common stock available for issuance to eligible employees and directors of the
Company. In accordance with the tel’;ms of the Omnibus Plan, shares of common stock that are represented by
options granted under the Company s previously existing plans which are forfeited, expire or are cancelled
without delivery of shares of common stock are added to the amounts reserved for issuance under the
Omnibus Plan. During fiscal 2004, 62 134 of options on comracn stock were forfeited under previously existing
plans. Also, during fiscal 2004, 821, 694 shares issued under the Omnibus Plan were exercised resulting in a
total of 8,731,268 shares remaining ayallable for issuance under the Omnibus Plan as of January 29, 2005. The
Omnibus Plan provides for awards ‘iof nonqualified stock options, incentive stock options, restricted stock
awards and restricted stock units. Nonew grants will be made under the Company’s existing 1992 Plan, 1993
Plan or Independent Directors’ Plah, and such existing plans will remain in effect only for purposes of
administering options that were outstandmg thereunder on the date the Omnibus Plan was approved by the
Company’s stockholders. As of January 29, 2005, approximately 4 048 000 nonqualified options are outstand-
ing under the Omnibus Plan. ‘
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Aggregate Stock Option Activity

As of January 29, 2005, 5,878,112 nonqualified options are outstanding at a weighted average exercise
price of $12.28 per share, and 4,683,564 remain available for future grants. Of the options outstanding,

2,207,790 options are exercisable.

Stock option activity for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, adjusted for 2-for-1 stock split effectuated on

February 22, 2003, was as follows:

Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Number - Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding, beginning of
period ............... 8,004,256 § 6.77 10,023,200 $ 438 14,502,452  $1.83
Granted ............. 2,203,800 19.27 2,138,900 11.55 2,870,532 8.33
Exercised ............ (4,049,402) 510 (4,097,802) 3.44  (7,306,784) 0.89
Canceled or expired . .. (280,542) 1342 (60,042) 9.47 (43,000)  2.55
Outstanding, end of period 5,878,112 12.28 8,004,256 6.77 10,023,200 4.38
Options exercisable, end :
of period............. 2,207,790 6.99 3,420,380 4.13 4,550,190 2.94

The following table summarizes information about stock options as of January 29, 2005:

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Ranges of Exercise Prices Outstanding  Life (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$018-% 1.58......... Ceee 419,018 4.73 $ 1.10 419,018 $ 1.10
$1.59-8$430................. 406,000 5.84 3.38 406,000 3.38
$431-$8.06................. 1,008,058 6.94 7.35 534,460 6.83
$807-8107L................. 1,254,830 7.89 9.02 587,334 9.18
$10.72-81595. ... 329,006 8.63 14.48 94,980 14.62
$1596-819.25................. 1,979,000 9.23 18.54 105,998 17.40
$19.26-82585................. 482,200 9.48 21.13 60,000 22.15
5,878,112

Stock Repurchase Program

2,207,790

In September 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the repurchase, over a twelve-month
period ending in September 2005, of up to $100 million of the Company’s outstanding common stock (the
“Program”). Pursuant to the Program, purchases of shares of the Company’s common stock may be made
from time to time on the open market, through block trades or otherwise, and/or in privately negotiated
transactions depending upon prevailing market conditions. The Company repurchased and retired
275,000 shares of its common stock during fiscal 2004 in connection with the Program, at a total cost of

approximately $5.0 million.
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CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONISOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Employee Stock Purchase Plani

* The Company has a noncompensatory employee stock purchase plan (ESPP) under which substantially
all full-time employees are given the right to purchase up to 800 shares of the common stock of the Company
two times a year at a price equal to 85 percent of the value of the stock immediately prior to the beginning of
each purchase period. During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, approximately 112,000, 110,000, and 96,000 shares,
respectively, were purchased under the ESPP. The Coripany recognized no compensation expense for the
issuance of these shares. 1

16. Retirement Plans: !

The Company has a 401 (k) deﬁned contribution employee benefit plan (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Employees’ rrghtslto Company contributed benefits vest fully upon completing five years of
service, with incremental vesting in service years two through five, as specified in the Plan. Under the Plan,
employees may contribute up,to 20 . percent of their annual compensation, subject to certain statutory
limitations. The Company has elected to match employee contributions at 50 percent on the first 6 percent of
the employees’ contributions and can elect to make additional contributions over and above the mandatory
match. For fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 the Company’s costs under the Plan were approximately $1.5 million,
$1.2 million, and $0. 9 million, respectlvely

In April 2002, the Company adopted the Chico’s FAS, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (the Deferred
Plan) to provide supplemental retirement income benefits for a select group of management employees.
Eligible participants may elect to| defer up to 80 percen: of their salary and 100 percent of their bonuses
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Deferred Plan. The Deferred Plan generally provides for payments
upon retirement, death or termnlratlon of employment. In addition, the Company may make employer
contributions to participants under the Deferred Plan. To date, no Company contributions have been made
under the Deferred Plan. The amount of the deferred compensation liability payable to the participants is
included in “deferred liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet. A portion of these obligations are funded
through the establishment of trust accounts held by the¢ Company on behalf of the management group
participating in the plan. The trustlaccounts are reflected in “other assets” in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet. '5
o

i
|

11. Subsequent Evemnt:

On January 6, 2005, the Cornp‘]any announced a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s common stock.
The stock split was effectuated - hy distributing one additional share of the Company’s stock to each
stockholder of record as of February 4, 2005, for every share of common stock then owned. The additional
shares were distributed to shareholders on February 22, 2005. Stockholders’ equity was restated as of the
beginning of earliest period presented to give retroactive recognition to the stock split by reclassifying the par
value of the additional shares ansr'hg from the split from additional paid in capital to common stock. All
historical weighted average share and per share amounts ard all references to the number of common shares
elsewhere in the consolidated ﬁnan01al statements and not:s thereto have been restated to reflect this stock

split. Par value remalned unchanged at $0.01.

64



CHICO’S FAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

12. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited):

Fiscal year ended January 29,
2005:

First quarter
Second quarter ............
Third quarter. .............
Fourth quarter.............

Fiscal year ended January 31,
2004:

First quarter
Second quarter ............
Third quarter. .............
Fourth quarter.............

Fiscal year ended February 1,
2003:

First quarter
Second quarter ............
Third quarter..............
Fourth quarter. ............

Net Income

Net Income Per Common and
Gross Net Per Common  Common Equivalent
Net Sales Profit Income Share — Basic Share — Diluted
$256,791 $159,836 $35,665 $0.20 $0.20
254,767 156,685 35,496 0.20 0.20
269,773 168,205 37,077 0.21 0.21
285,551 170,247 32,968 0.18 0.18
$168,985 $104,295 $23,367 $0.14 $0.13
173,436 107,603 24,466 .14 0.14
210,569 129,367 26,759 0.15 0.15
215,509 129,757 25,637 0.15 0.14
$130,454 § 81,464 $19,777 $0.12 $0.12
125,068 75,479 16,388 0.10 0.10
137,261 82,376 15,544 0.09 0.09
138,325 82,020 15,050 0.09 0.09
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN ANp DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None. v 5

[

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Controls and Procedures - :

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluatron was carried out under the supervision and
with the participation of the Companys managemen:, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectivieness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended). Based upon that eva}uation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that, as of the end of such penod the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely
alerting them to material mformanon relating to the Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries)
required to be included in the Companys periodic SEC filings. There were no significant changes in the
Company’s internal controls or 1n other factors that could s1gn1ﬁcantly affect these controls subsequent to the

date of their evaluation.

There was no change in ‘the‘% Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the Company’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

|

Management’s Report on Interhal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible | {for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is deﬁned in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the
supervision and with the part1c1pat1on of the Company’s management, including its principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005 as required by the Securities Exchange Act of .
1934 Rule 13a-15(c). In making this assessment, the Company used the criteria set forth by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of |the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework. Based on its evaluation, management concluded that its internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of January 29, 2095.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of January 29, 2005 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered certified public
accounting firm, as stated in theirireport which appears below.

Report of Indépendent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Chico’s FAS, Inc.

|

‘We have audited managemeﬁ_t’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reﬁporting, that Chico’s FAS, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 29, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
crlterla) Chico’s FAS, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsrbrhty is to express an oprmon on management’s asszssment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over ﬁnanc1a1 reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accprdance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those star'rdards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective iinternal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
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respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Chico’s FAS, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of January 29, 2003, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, Chico’s FAS, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years
ended January 29, 2005 of Chico’s FAS, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated March 28, 2005 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tampa, Florida
March 28, 2005

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART 11

\
i
i
i
1

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information about diréctors and nominees for director, code of ethics, audit committee and audit
committee financial expert of thé Company and Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance in
the Company’s 2005 Annual Meeting proxy statement is incorporated herein by reference. Information about
executive officers of the Companiy is included in Item A. of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

| i
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information about executwe{ compensatlon in the Company’s 2005 Annual Meeting proxy statement is
incorporated herein by rcference]

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGE-
MENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is included in the Company’s 2005 Annual Meeting proxy
statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Inforlmation

The following table shows iniforrnation concerning the Company’s equity compensation plans as of the
end of the fiscal year ended Janulary 29, .2005 (adjusted for 2-for-1 stock split effectuated on February 22,
2005): |
i Number of Securities

Remaining Available for
Number of Securities to Weighted-average Future Issuance Under

‘ be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
}of Outstanding Options, ' QOutstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights (3) Reflected in Column (a))
i (a) b (c)

Equity compensation plans i
approved by security
holders(1) ....... e . 5,788,112 $12.44 4,683,564

Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
holders(2) .............. 90,000 2.15 -0-

Total ................... 5,878,112 $12.28 4,683,564

(1) Includes shares authorized fér issuance under the Company’s 1992 Stock Option Plan, 1993 Stock
Option Plan, Independent Directors Plan, 2002 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan, and Non-Employee
Directors’ Stock Option Plan.g

(2) Includes shares authorized foif issuance under the Company’s Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option
Program. & ‘

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIdNSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by ithis Item is included in the Company’s 2005 Annual Meeting proxy
statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM i4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUENTANT FEES AND SERVICES

i
The information required by éthis Item is included in the Company’s 2005 Annual Meeting proxy
statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report.

(1)

(2)

3)

3.1*

3.2%

3.3%

3.4%

3.5%

3.6%

3.7*

3.8*

4.1%

The following financial statements are contained in Item 8:

Financial Statements Page in this Report

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered certified public

accounting fifm . .. ... L e 44
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 45
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended January 29,

2005, January 31, 2004, and February 1,2003 ..... .. ... ... ... ...... 46
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the fiscal years ended

January 29, 2005, January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003 ............ 47
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended

January 29, 2005, January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003 ............ 48
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.......................... 49

The following Financial Statement Schedules are included herein:

Schedules are not submitted because they are not applicable or not required or because the required
information is included in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report (exhibits marked with an asterisk have been
previously filed with the Commission as indicated and are incorporated herein by this reference):

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Commission File No. 333-44678), as filed with the
Commission on August 28, 2000)

Articles of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 4, 2001, as filed with the Commission on
August 30, 2001)

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 3, 2002, as filed with the Commission on
August 28, 2002)

Articles of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective as of
June 23, 2004 (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
2004, as filed with the Commission on August 26, 2004)

Articles of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective as of
February 22, 2005 (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on
February 22, 2005)

Amended and Restated By-laws (Filed as Exhibit 3.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended April 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on May 18, 1993)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated By-laws of Chico’s FAS, Inc., adopted and effective
January 23, 2004 (Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
2004, as filed with the Commission on August 26, 2004)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated By-laws of Chico’s FAS, Inc., adopted and effective
June 21, 2004 (Filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
2004, as filed with the Commission on August 26, 2004)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Commission File No. 333-44678), as filed with the
Commission on August 28, 2000)
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4.9
10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5%

10.6*
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10.9*
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Articles of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Form: 10-Q for the quarter ended August 4, 2001, as filed with the Commission on
August 30, 2001) |

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Form:10-Q for the quarter ended August 3, 2002, as filed with the Commission on
August 28, 2002)

Articles of Amendmenl of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective as of
June 23, 2004 (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,

2004, as filed with the Comm1ssmn on August 26, 2004)

Articles of Amendmenl of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective as of
February 22, 2005 (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on

February 22, 2005) i

Amended and Restated lBy-laws (Filed as Exhibit 3.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended April 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on May 18, 1993)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated By-laws of Chico’s FAS, Inc., adopted and effective
January 23, 2004 (Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
2004, as filed with the Qommission on August 26, 2004)

Second Amendment to Amcn‘ded and Restated By-laws of Chico’s FAS, Inc., adopted and effective
June 21, 2004 (Filed as|Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
2004, as filed with the Qommission on August 26, 2004)

Form of specimen Common Stock Certificate

Employment Agreementlbetween the Company and Marvin J. Gralnick, effective as of February 7,
2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 29, 2000, as filed
with the Commission on|September 5, 2000)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Marvin J. Gralnick,
effective as of September; 26, 2001 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended February 2, 2002, las filed with the Commission on April 24, 2002)

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Marvin J. Gralnick,
effective as of September| 3 2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended November 1, 2003‘ as filed with the Commission on December 3, 2003)

Letter Agreement regardmg employment of Marvin J. Gralnick dated March 1, 2004 (Filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2004, as filed with the
Commission on April 9, 2004)

Employment AgreementE for Helene B. Gralnick, effective as of February 7, 2000 (Filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 29, 2000, as filed with the
Commission on Septembér 5,,2000)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Helene B. Gralnick,
effective as of September | 26 2001 (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended February 2, 2002, a}s filed with the Commission on April 24, 2002)

Amendment No. 2 to Ef;nployment Agreement between the Company and Helene B. Gralnick,
effective as of September 3, 2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended November 1, 2003, as filed with the Commission on December 3, 2003)

Letter Agreement regardmg employment of Helene B. Gralnick dated March 1, 2004 (Filed as
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company s Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2004, as filed with the
Commission on April 9, 2904)

Employment Agreement :gfor Charles J. Kleman (Filed as Exhibit 10.6.5 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarte'{ ended April 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on May 18, 1993)
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Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Charles J. Kleman,
effective as of August 21, 2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 28, 2000, as filed with the Commission on December 8, 2000)

Employment Agreement between the Company and Scott A. Edmonds, effective as of September 3,
2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2004, as
filed with the Commission on April 9, 2004)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Scott A. Edmonds,
effective as of June 22, 2004 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended July 31, 2004, as filed with the Commission on August 26, 2004)

Employment Agreement for Mori C. MacKenzie (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 1, 1995, as filed with the Commission on November 13,
1995)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Mori C. MacKenzie,
effective as of August 21, 2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 28, 2000, as filed with the Commission on December 8, 2000)

Employment Agreement between the Company and James P. Frain effective as of April 14, 2000
(Filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended February 2, 2002, as filed
with the Commission on April 24, 2002)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and James P. Frain effective
as of February 13, 2001 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 3, 2001, as filed with the Commission on December 5, 2001)

Employment Agreement between the Company and James P. Frain, effective as of May 1, 2004
(Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2004, as filed with
the Commission on August 26, 2004)

Employment Agreement between the Company and Patricia A. Murphy, effective as of August 21,
2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 28, 2000, as
filed with the Commission on December 8, 2000)

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Patricia A. Murphy,
effective as of August 21, 2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended February 3, 2001, as filed with the Commission on April 30, 2001)

Employment Agreement between the Company and Richard D. Sarmiento, effective as of
September 5, 2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Commission
on September 5, 2003)

Letter Agreement regarding employment of Richard D. Sarmiento dated August 17, 2004 (Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 30, 2004, as filed with the
Commission on November 30, 2004)

Employment Agreement between the Company and Patricia Darrow-Smith, effective as of
September 5, 2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K as filed with the Commission
on September 5, 2003)

1992 Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 33-58134), as filed with the Commission on February 10, 1993, as amended)
First Amendment to 1992 Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Form 10-K
for the year ended January 2, 1994, as filed with the Commission on April 1, 1994)

1993 Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended
January 2, 1994, as filed with the Commission on April 1, 1994)

First Amendment to 1993 Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 10-K for
the year ended January 30, 1999, as filed with the Commission on April 28, 1999)
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Second Amendment to 1993 Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the year ended February 2, 2002, as filed with the Commission on April 24, 2002)
2002 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Form 10-K for
the year ended February 2, 2002, as filed with the Commission on April 24, 2002)

Form of 2002 Ommbus Stock and Incentive Plan Stock Option Certificate for Employees (Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on February 3, 2005)
Form of 2002 Ommbus Stock and Incentive Plan Stock Option Certificate for Non-Management
Directors (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on
February 3, 2005)
Form of 2002 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement for Employees (Filed
as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on February 3, 2005)
Form of 2002 Omnibus| Stock and Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Management
Directors (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on
February 3, 2005) v
Chico’s FAS, Inc. Am =nded and Restated 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

2005 Cash Bonus Incentrve Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-K, as filed with the
Commission on February 3, 2005)

Indemnification Agreement with Marvin J. Gralnick (Filed as Exhibit 10.9.1 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on August 13, 1993)
Indemnification Agreement with Helene B. Gralnick (Filed as Exhibit 10.9.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on August 13, 1993)
Indemnification Agreement with Charles J. Kleman (Filed as Exhibit 10.9.5 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on August 13, 1993)
Indemnification Agreement with Verna K. Gibson (Filed as Exhibit 10.9.6 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quai‘ter ended July 4, 1993, as filed with the Commission on August 13, 1993)
Indemnification Agreement with Scott A. Edmonds (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 2, 1995, as filed with the Commission on August 14, 1995)
Indemnification Agreement with John W. Burden (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 4, 2001, as filed with the Commission on August 30, 2001)

Indemnification Agreement with Ross E. Roeder (Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 4, 2001, as filed with the Commission on August 30, 2001)

Sample Form of Franchise Agreement (Filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1i (F11e No. 33 58134) as filed with the Commission on February 10, 1993, as
amended) |

Sample Form of Temtory Development Agreement (Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s
Registration Statement| on Form S-1 (File No. 33-58134) as filed with the Commission on
February 10, 1993, as amended)

Sample Form of Purchase Agreement (Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1{(File No. 33-58134) as filed with the Commission on February 10, 1993, as
amended)

Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement by and among Bank of America, N.A., the Company
and the subsidiaries of|the Company dated as of May 12, 2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q| for the quarter ended July 29, 2000, as filed with the Commission on
September 5, 2000)

First Amendment to Re\f/olving Credit and Term Loan Agreement by and between Bank of America,
N.A., the Company and the subsidiaries of the Company dated as of January 15, 2002 (Filed as
Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended February 2, 2002, as filed with the
Commission on April 24, 2002)
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Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement by and among Bank of America, N.A,, the
Company and the subsidiaries of the Company dated as of September 24, 2002 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 2, 2002, as filed with the Commission
on December 3, 2002)

Amendment and Restatement of the Chico’s FAS, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.47
to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 3, 1994, as filed with the Commission on
May 10, 1994)

Nonemployee Stock Option Agreement by and between Chico’s FAS, Inc. and Verna K. Gibson
dated effective May 15, 2000 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended May 5, 2001, as filed with the Commission on June 7, 2001)

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 10.49 to the Company’s Form 10-K
for the year ended January 30, 1999, as filed with the Commission on April 28, 1999)

First Amendment to Chico’s FAS, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (Filed as
Exhibit 10.51 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 29, 2000, as filed with the
Commisston on April 25, 2000)

Chico’s FAS, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan effective April 1, 2002 (Filed as Exhibit 10.53 to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended February 2, 2002, as filed with the Commission on
April 24, 2002)

Lease Agreement between Joint Development Authority of Winder-Barrow County and Chico’s Real
Estate, LL.C dated as of March 25, 2002 (Filed as Exhibit 10.54 to the Company’s Form 10-K for
the year ended February 2, 2002, as filed with the Commission on April 24, 2002)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 30, 2003 among Chico’s FAS, Inc., The White House,
Inc., the stockholders of The White House, Inc. and the Sellers’ Representative (Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 2, 2003, as filed with the
Commission on August 27, 2003)

Annual Report to Stockholders

Preferability letter from Ernst & Young LLP dated April 5, 2004 regarding change in accounting
principle (Filed as Exhibit 18 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31,
2004, as filed with the Commission on April 9, 2004)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of Ermnst & Young LLP

Chico’s FAS, Inc. and Subsidiaries Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 — Chief Executive Officer

Chico’s FAS, Inc. and Subsidiaries Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 — Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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\ ' SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requlréments of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
reglstrant has duly caused th1s report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

l

\ CHico’s Fas, Inc.

oy - \ . By: /s/{  Scort A. EDMONDS
- , Scott A. Edmonds,

! President and Chief Executive Officer, Director

Date April 8, 2005 *

|

Pursuant to the requlrements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

|
Signature ‘\ Title Date
. : ’ A"
/s/ ScorT.A. EDMONDS President and Chief Executive Officer, April 8, 2005
Scott A. Edmonds | Director (Principal Executive Officer)
\ O .

. | i
/s/ CHARLES J. KLEMAN

~ Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial = April 8, 2005
Charles J. Klema"r‘i\ . Officer, Director (Principal Financial

Ofticer)

/s/ MICHAEL J. KINCAIS Senior Vice President-Finance, Chief April 8, 2005
M1chael J. Kincaid ! Accounting Officer and Assistant

1 Secretary (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/  MARVIN J. GRALNICK

Chairman of the Board, Director April 8, 2005
Marvin J. Gralnick: ‘ '
/s/ HELENE B. GRALNICK! Director April 8, 2005
Helene B. Gralnick l‘
48/ VERNA'K. GIBSON' § Director April 8, 2005
Verna K. Gibson |
| .
/s/  JOHN W. BURDEN 11T} Director April 8, 2005 {
| 3
Jol}n W. Burden, III l \
}
/s/ Ross E. ROEDER | Director April 8, 2005
Ross E. Roeder |
]
/s/ BETSY S. ATKINS | Director Apri! 8, 2005
Betsy S." Atkins ‘1
/s/ STEWART P. MITCHELL | Director April 8, 2005

Stewart P. Mitchell
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